	AWARD/CONTRACT	1. THIS CONTRA UNDER DPAS				RATING N/A		PAGE 1	OF PAGES
2. CONTRAC	T NO. (Proc. Inst. Ident.)	3. EFFECTIVE DATE			4. REQUISITION		QUEST/PF		
NRC-07-6		2/22	/08		NSR-08-145				
5. ISSUED BY	CODE 310	 DO	6. ADM	NISTER	ED BY (If other than ite	m 5)		3100	
			U.s	. Nuc	lear Regulator	y Commissi	CODE on	<u> </u>	
	clear Regulatory Commission Contracts				Contracts 5 T-7-I-2				
Attn:	· · ·	,	Hai	L SCO	5 1-7-1-2				
	op T-7-I-2 ton, DC 20555		Was	hinat	on, DC 20555				
	DADDRESS OF CONTRACTOR (No., street, city, c	county, State and ZIP Code)			8. DELIVERY				
		· .					,		
но	MANTOUCH LLC				FOB	ORIĜIN	x	OTHER	(See below)
	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·				9. DISCOUNT	FOR PROMPT	PAYMENT	,	(
64	24 000000000000000000000000000000000000								
04	20 CROSSWOODS DR							,	
FA	LLS CHURCH VA 220441214								
					10. SUBMIT I		ITEM		
					(4 copies unle specified)				
CODE 84	3919197 FACI	LITY CODE			ADDRESS				· ·
11. SHIP TO/	MARK FOR CODE		12. PAY	MENT	VILL BE MADE BY		CODE	3100	
U.S. Nu	clear Regulatory Commission				lear Regulator		on .		
	•				leam, Mail Sto nsert contract		number)		
Washing	ton DC 20555		War	hingt	on DC 20555		,		
	ITY FOR USING OTHER THAN FULL AND OPEN (COMPETITION:	14. ACC	OUNTH	NG AND APPROPRI				
, -		253(c)(⊃)	B & P	No.	811-15-5E1-385 ion No.: 31X02	Job Code			
5A. ITEM NO	15B. SUPPLIES/SE		1		·····		NT PRICE	15F. AMOU	
		,							
	,								
			•						
	`	,							· .
	<u></u>		·······	15G.	TOTAL AMOUNT	OF CONTRA	ст	 	- en.
		16. TABLE OF	CONTE	NTS				1	·
(X) SEC.	DESCRIPTION	PAGE(S)	(X)	SEC.		DESCRIPTIC	N		PAGE(S)
	PART I- THE SCHEDULE		<u> </u>	······	PAF	TII - CONTRACT	CLAUSES		
A .	SOLICITATION/CONTRACT FORM		<u> </u>	· · · ·	ONTRACT CLAUSES		•		ļ
В	SUPPLIES OR SERVICES AND PRICES/COSTS		· · ·	F	PART III - LIST OF DOCL	MENTS, EXHIBIT	S AND OTHE	R ATTACH.	
<u> </u>	DESCRIPTION/SPECS.WORK STATEMENT	· · · · ·	+	J·	IST OF ATTACHMENTS				1
D		 	+	1	PART IV - REPRE			005	
	DELIVERIES OR PERFORMANCE		1		EPRESENTATIONS, CE		ND		
F	CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION DATA				STRS., CONDS., AND I		ER		
F G		1		1	VALUATION FACTORS				1
	SPECIAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS			EM 17	00 40 40 400110				
G H	CONTRACTING	GOFFICER WILL COMP			OR 18 AS APPLIC	ABLE			
б н 17. х со	CONTRACTING NTRACTOR'S NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT (Contr	ractor is required to sign this		1	NRD (Contractor is not		s document.)	Your	
G H 17. X CO document and agrees to furr	CONTRACTING NTRACTOR'S NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT (Contr d return <u>3</u> copies to is nish and deliver all items or perform all the services	ractor is required to sign this suing office.) Contractor set forth or	18.	AWA Solicitat	NRD (Contractor is not	required to sign th			are set
G H 17. X CO document an agrees to fur otherwise ide stated herein	CONTRACTING NTRACTOR'S NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT (Contr d return	ractor is required to sign this suing office.) Contractor set forth or e consideration ntract shall be	18. offer on includin forth in	AWA Solicitat g the ad	RD (Contractor is not ion Number ditions or changes ma e, is hereby accepted	required to sign th ade by you whic as to the items	h additions listed above	or changes e andon an	у
G H 17. X CO document and agrees to furr otherwise ide stated herein subject to and the solicitatio	CONTRACTING NTRACTOR'S NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT (Contr d return <u>3</u> copies to is nish and deliver all items or perform all the services entified above and on any continuation sheets for the . The rights and obligations of the parties to this cou d governed by the following documents: (a) this awi n, if any, and (c) such provisions, representations, c	ractor is required to sign this suing office.) Contractor set forth or a consideration ntract shall be ard/contract, (b) ertifications, and	18. offer on includin forth in conditio followin	AWA Solicitat g the ad full abov n sheets g docum	RD (Contractor is not ion Number	required to sign th ade by you whic as to the items imates the cont nent's solicitation	h additions listed above ract which c on andyour o	or changes e andon an onsists of t	y he
G H 17. X CO document and agrees to furr otherwise ide stated herein subject to and the solicitatio	CONTRACTING NTRACTOR'S NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT (Contr d return copies to is nish and deliver all items or perform all the services entified above and on any continuation sheets for the . The rights and obligations of the parties to this con d governed by the following documents: (a) this aw n, if any, and (c) such provisions, representations, c , as are attached or incorporated by reference here	ractor is required to sign this suing office.) Contractor set forth or a consideration ntract shall be ard/contract, (b) ertifications, and	18. offer on includin forth in conditio followin	AWA Solicitat g the ad full abov n sheets g docum	RD (Contractor is not ion Number ditions or changes ma e, is hereby accepted . This award consur	required to sign th ade by you whic as to the items imates the cont nent's solicitation	h additions listed above ract which c on andyour o	or changes e andon an onsists of t	y he
G H 17. X CO document and agrees to furr otherwise ide stated herein subject to and the solicitation specifications are listed here	CONTRACTING NTRACTOR'S NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT (Contr d return copies to is nish and deliver all items or perform all the services entified above and on any continuation sheets for the . The rights and obligations of the parties to this con d governed by the following documents: (a) this aw n, if any, and (c) such provisions, representations, c , as are attached or incorporated by reference here	ractor is required to sign this suing office.) Contractor set forth or a consideration ntract shall be ard/contract, (b) ertifications, and	18 offer on includin forth in conditio followin award/c	AWA Solicitat g the ad full abov n sheets g docum ontract.	RD (Contractor is not ion Number	required to sign the ade by you whice as to the items imates the cont ment's solicitation al document is r	h additions listed above ract which c on andyour o	or changes e andon an onsists of t	y he
G H 17. X CO document and agrees to furr otherwise ide stated herein subject to and the solicitation specifications are listed here	CONTRACTING NTRACTOR'S NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT (Contr d return <u>3</u> copies to is nish and deliver all items or perform all the services intified above and on any continuation sheets for the . The rights and obligations of the parties to this cou d governed by the following documents: (a) this awi n, if any, and (c) such provisions, representations, c s, as are attached or incorporated by reference here ein.) ND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or print)	ractor is required to sign this suing office.) Contractor set forth or a consideration ntract shall be ard/contract, (b) ertifications, and	18. offer on includin forth in conditio followin award/c 20A. NA Ste	AWA Solicitat g the ad full abov n sheets g docum ontract.	RD (Contractor is not ion Number	required to sign the ade by you whice as to the items imates the cont ment's solicitation al document is r	h additions listed above ract which c on andyour o	or changes e andon an onsists of t	y he
G H 17. X CO document an agrees to fur otherwise ide stated herein subject to and the solicitatio specifications are listed herei 19A. NAME A MOE	CONTRACTING NTRACTOR'S NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT (Contr d return copies to is nish and deliver all items or perform all the services entified above and on any continuation sheets for the . The rights and obligations of the parties to this con d governed by the following documents: (a) this aw n, if any, and (c) such provisions, representations, c s, as are attached or incorporated by reference here ein.)	ractor is required to sign this suing office.) Contractor set forth or a consideration ntract shall be ard/contract, (b) ertifications, and	18 offer on includin forth in conditio followin award/c 20A. NA Step Com	AWA Solicitat g the ad full abov n sheets g docum ontract.	IRD (Contractor is not ion Number	required to sign this ade by you whice as to the items imates the continuent's solicitation al document is r	h additions listed above ract which c on andyour o	or changes e andon an onsists of t offer, and (I	y he
G H 17. X CO document an agrees to fur otherwise ide stated herein subject to and the solicitatio specifications are listed herei 19A. NAME A MOE	CONTRACTING NTRACTOR'S NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT (Contr d return	ractor is required to sign this suing office.) Contractor set forth or e consideration ntract shall be ard/contract, (b) ertifications, and in. (Attachments	18 offer on includin forth in conditio followin award/c 20A. NA Step Com	AWA Solicitat g the ad full abov n sheets g docum ontract.	RD (Contractor is not ion Number	required to sign the adde by you whice as to the items imates the cont nent's solicitation al document is r	h additions listed above ract which c on andyour o	or changes e andon an onsists of t offer, and (I	y he b) this
G H H 17. X CO document anu agrees to furr otherwise ide stated herein subject to and the solicitation specifications are listed herein 19A. NAME A MOE 19B. NAME C	CONTRACTING NTRACTOR'S NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT (Contr d return <u>3</u> copies to is nish and deliver all items or perform all the services ntified above and on any continuation sheets for the . The rights and obligations of the parties to this cou d governed by the following documents: (a) this awi n, if any, and (c) such provisions, representations, c s, as are attached or incorporated by reference here ein.) ND TITLE OF SIGNER (Type or print) Lag far, frestdew t	actor is required to sign this suing office.) Contractor set forth or e consideration ntract shall be ard/contract, (b) ertifications, and in. (Attachments	18 offer on includin forth in conditio followin award/c 20A. N/ Stej Con 20B. Uh	AWA Solicitat g the ad full abov n sheets g docum ontract.	IRD (Contractor is not ion Number	required to sign the adde by you whice as to the items imates the cont nent's solicitation al document is r	h additions listed above ract which c on andyour o	or changes e andon an onsists of t offer, and (I	y he b) this
G H H 17. X CO document and agrees to fur otherwise idde stated herein subject to and the solicitation specifications are listed herein 198. NAME A MOE BY BY	CONTRACTING NTRACTOR'S NEGOTIATED AGREEMENT (Contr d return	actor is required to sign this suing office.) Contractor set forth or e consideration ntract shall be ard/contract, (b) ertifications, and in. (Attachments	18. offer on includin forth in conditio followin award/c 20A. N/ Stej Con 20B. Uh BY	AWA Solicitat g the ad full abov n sheets g docum ontract.	RD (Contractor is not ion Number	required to sign the adde by you whice as to the items imates the cont nent's solicitation al document is r	h additions listed above ract which c on andyour o	or changes e andon an onsists of t offer, and (I	y he b) this

.

PART I - THE SCHEDULE	A-1
SECTION A - SOLICITATION/CONTRACT FORM	A-1
SF 26 AWARD/CONTRACT	<u>A</u> -1
PART I - THE SCHEDULE	B-1
SECTION B - SUPPLIES OR SERVICES AND PRICE/COSTS	B-1
 B.1 PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE B.2 PROJECT TITLE B.3 BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF WORK (MAR 1987) ALTERNATE 1 (JUN 1988) B.4 CONSIDERATION AND OBLIGATIONTASK ORDERS (AUG 1989) ALTERNATE 1 (JUN 1991) 	B-1 B-1
SECTION C - DESCRIPTION/SPECIFICATIONS/STATEMENT OF WORK	
SECTION D - PACKAGING AND MARKING	D-1
D.1 PACKAGING AND MARKING (MAR 1987)	D-1
SECTION E - INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE	E-1
E.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE E.2 PLACE OF INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE (MAR 1987)	
SECTION F - DELIVERIES OR PERFORMANCE	F-1
F.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE F.2 2052.211-70 PREPARATION OF TECHNICAL REPORTS (JAN 1993) F.3 DELIVERY SCHEDULE F.4 PLACE OF DELIVERYREPORTS (JUN 1988) F.5 DURATION OF CONTRACT PERIOD (MAR 1987) ALTERNATE 4 (JUN 1988)	F-1 F-1 F-1
SECTION G - CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION DATA	G-1
 G.1 PROJECT OFFICER AUTHORITY ALTERNATE 2 (FEBRUARY 2004) G.2 2052.216-72 TASK ORDER PROCEDURES (OCT 1999) G.3 2052.216-73 ACCELERATED TASK ORDER PROCEDURES (JAN 1993) G.4 2052.235-71 SAFETY, HEALTH, AND FIRE PROTECTION (JAN 1993) G.5 2052.211-71 TECHNICAL PROGRESS REPORT (JAN 1993) G.6 ORDERING PROCEDURES (MAY 1991) SECTION H - SPECIAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 	G-1 G-2 G-2 G-3
SECTION H - SPECIAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS	. H-1
 H.1 2052.204.70 SECURITY (MAR 2004) H.2 SECURITY REQUIREMENTS FOR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY LEVEL I OR LEV II ACCESS APPROVAL (JUL 2007) H.3 2052.204-71 BADGE REQUIREMENTS FOR UNESCORTED BUILDING ACCESS TO NRC FACILITIES (MAR 2006) 	EL H-2 D
 H.4 2052.209-72 CONTRACTOR ORGANIZATIONAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST (JAN 1993) H.5 2052.215-70 KEY PERSONNEL (JAN 1993) H.6 DISSEMINATION OF INFORMATION H.7 RELEASE OF REPORTS H.8 RELEASE OF NEWS INFORMATION 	. H-5 . H-8 . H-8 . H-8 . H-8 . H-9
H.9 GOVERNMENT FURNISHED EQUIPMENT/PROPERTY (JANUARY 2001)	. H-9

Table of Contents

H.10 SEAT BELTS
H.11 ANNUAL AND FINAL CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS
H.12 COMPENSATION FOR ON-SITE CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL (Alternate 1)
H.13 HOLIDAYS AND ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE
H.14 APPROPRIATE USE OF GOVERNMENT FURNISHED INFORMATION
TECHNOLOGY (IT) EQUIPMENT AND/ OR IT SERVICES/ ACCESS
(MARCH 2002)
H.15 COMPLIANCE WITH U.S. IMMIGRATION LAWS AND REGULATIONS
H.16 SAFETY OF ON-SITE CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL
H.17 NRC INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SECURITY TRAINING (AUG 2003) H-12
H.18 WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTION FOR NRC CONTRACTOR AND
SUBCONTRACTOR EMPLOYEES (JULY 2006) H-13
PART II - CONTRACT CLAUSESI-1
SECTION I - CONTRACT CLAUSESI-1
I.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCEI-1
I.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCEI-1 I.2 52.216-18 ORDERING (OCT 1995)I-3
I.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCEI-1I.2 52.216-18 ORDERING (OCT 1995)I-3I.3 52.216-19 ORDER LIMITATIONS (OCT 1995)I-3I.4 52.216-22 INDEFINITE QUANTITY (OCT 1995)I-3
I.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCEI-1I.2 52.216-18 ORDERING (OCT 1995)I-3I.3 52.216-19 ORDER LIMITATIONS (OCT 1995)I-3I.4 52.216-22 INDEFINITE QUANTITY (OCT 1995)I-3
I.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE I-1 I.2 52.216-18 ORDERING (OCT 1995) I-3 I.3 52.216-19 ORDER LIMITATIONS (OCT 1995) I-3 I.4 52.216-22 INDEFINITE QUANTITY (OCT 1995) I-3 I.5 52.217-8 OPTION TO EXTEND SERVICES (NOV 1999) I-4
I.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCEI-1I.2 52.216-18 ORDERING (OCT 1995)I-3I.3 52.216-19 ORDER LIMITATIONS (OCT 1995)I-3I.4 52.216-22 INDEFINITE QUANTITY (OCT 1995)I-3
I.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE I-1 I.2 52.216-18 ORDERING (OCT 1995) I-3 I.3 52.216-19 ORDER LIMITATIONS (OCT 1995) I-3 I.4 52.216-22 INDEFINITE QUANTITY (OCT 1995) I-3 I.5 52.217-8 OPTION TO EXTEND SERVICES (NOV 1999) I-4 I.6 52.217-9 OPTION TO EXTEND THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT (MAR 2000) I-4
I.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCEI-1I.2 52.216-18 ORDERING (OCT 1995)I-3I.3 52.216-19 ORDER LIMITATIONS (OCT 1995)I-3I.4 52.216-22 INDEFINITE QUANTITY (OCT 1995)I-3I.5 52.217-8 OPTION TO EXTEND SERVICES (NOV 1999)I-4I.6 52.217-9 OPTION TO EXTEND THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT (MAR 2000)I-4I.7 52.219-11 SPECIAL 8(A) CONTRACT CONDITIONS (FEB 1990)I-4I.8 52.219-12 SPECIAL 8(A) SUBCONTRACT CONDITIONS (FEB 1990)I-5I.9 52.219-28 POST-AWARD SMALL BUSINESS PROGRAM REREPRESENTATION
I.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCEI-1I.2 52.216-18 ORDERING (OCT 1995)I-3I.3 52.216-19 ORDER LIMITATIONS (OCT 1995)I-3I.4 52.216-22 INDEFINITE QUANTITY (OCT 1995)I-3I.5 52.217-8 OPTION TO EXTEND SERVICES (NOV 1999)I-4I.6 52.217-9 OPTION TO EXTEND THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT (MAR 2000)I-4I.7 52.219-11 SPECIAL 8(A) CONTRACT CONDITIONS (FEB 1990)I-4I.8 52.219-12 SPECIAL 8(A) SUBCONTRACT CONDITIONS (FEB 1990)I-5I.9 52.219-28 POST-AWARD SMALL BUSINESS PROGRAM REREPRESENTATIONI-5
I.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE I-1 I.2 52.216-18 ORDERING (OCT 1995) I-3 I.3 52.216-19 ORDER LIMITATIONS (OCT 1995) I-3 I.4 52.216-22 INDEFINITE QUANTITY (OCT 1995) I-3 I.5 52.217-8 OPTION TO EXTEND SERVICES (NOV 1999) I-4 I.6 52.217-9 OPTION TO EXTEND THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT (MAR 2000) I-4 I.7 52.219-11 SPECIAL 8(A) CONTRACT CONDITIONS (FEB 1990) I-4 I.8 52.219-12 SPECIAL 8(A) SUBCONTRACT CONDITIONS (FEB 1990) I-5

•

~

SECTION B – SUPPLIES OR SERVICES AND PRICES/COSTS

THE SCHEDULE

Base Year - February 22, 2008 through February 21, 2009

CLIN	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE	TOTAL \$
1.0	Senior PMO Consultant	Hours			\$17,912.00
2.0	SPI Analyst	Hours			\$283,737.60
3.0	Helpdesk Tech Support II	Hours			\$10,923.80
4.0	Helpdesk Tech Support I	Hours		period and a second	\$9,667.28
5.0	Deliverables	Lot			NSP

BASE YEAR TOTAL \$ 322

322,240.68

Option Year One – February 22, 2009 – February 21, 2010

CLIN	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY RATE	TOTAL \$
6.0	Senior PMO Consultant	Hours		\$18,449.00
7.0	SPI Analyst	Hours		\$292,243.20
8.0	Helpdesk Tech Support II	Hours		\$11,252.08
9.0	Helpdesk Tech Support I	Hours	and the second	\$9,955.94
10.0	Deliverables	Lot	Lange Latter - with and a	NSP

OPTION YEAR ONE TOTAL \$ 331,900.22

Option Year Two - February 22, 2010 - February 21, 2011

CLIN	DESCRIPTION	UNIT	QUANTITY	RATE	TOTAL \$
11.0	Senior PMO Consultant	Hours			\$18,987.00
12.0	SPI Analyst	Hours		Maria and	\$300,768.00
13.0	Helpdesk Tech Support II	Hours	-4 12 <u>11</u>	li References	\$11,580.36
14.0	Helpdesk Tech Support I	Hours	Antonio P	and and a star	\$10,247.43
15.0	Deliverables	Lot			NSP

OPTION YEAR TWO TOTAL \$ 341,582.79

CONTRACT GRAND TOTAL \$ 995,723.69

*not separately priced

PART I - THE SCHEDULE

SECTION B - SUPPLIES OR SERVICES AND PRICE/COSTS

B.1 PERFORMANCE SCHEDULE

This contract consists of a base period and two (2) option period(s). These period(s) are as described below:

YEAR	BEGINNING	ENDING
Base Period	02/22/08	02/21/09
Option Year One	02/22/09	02/21/10
Option Year Two	02/22/10	02/21/11

B.2 PROJECT TITLE

The title of this project is as follows:

General IT Support for NSIR Records Management

B.3 BRIEF DESCRIPTION OF WORK (MAR 1987) ALTERNATE 1 (JUN 1988)

(a) Brief description of work:

To obtain services in support of NSIR Records Management by providing a contract vehicle that is fully capable of supporting any type of record management support activity requested by NSIR (i.e. paper as well as electronic records, maintenance, development, analysis, study)

(b) Orders will be issued for work required by the NRC in accordance with 52.216-18 - Ordering. Only Contracting Officers of the NRC or other individuals specifically authorized under this contract may authorize the initiation of work under this contract. The provisions of this contract shall govern all orders issued hereunder.

B.4 CONSIDERATION AND OBLIGATION--TASK ORDERS (AUG 1989) ALTERNATE 1 (JUN 1991)

(a) The Maximum Ordering Limitation (MOL) for products and services ordered, delivered and accepted under this contract is \$322,240.68. The Contracting Officer may place orders with the contractor during the contract period provided the aggregate amount of such orders does not exceed the MOL.

(b) The guaranteed minimum obligated by the Government under this contract is \$20,000.00.

(c) A total estimated cost as well as any fee, if any, will be negotiated for each task order and will be incorporated as a ceiling in the resultant task order. The Contractor shall comply with the provisions of 52.232-20 - Limitation of Cost for fully funded task orders and 52.232-22 - Limitation of Funds for incrementally funded task orders, issued hereunder.

SECTION C - DESCRIPTION/SPECIFICATIONS/STATEMENT OF WORK

(SEE SECTION J – ATTACHMENT ONE)

C-1

SECTION D - PACKAGING AND MARKING

D.1 PACKAGING AND MARKING (MAR 1987)

The Contractor shall package material for shipment to the NRC in such a manner that will ensure acceptance by common carrier and safe delivery at destination. Containers and closures shall comply with the Interstate Commerce Commission Regulations, Uniform Freight Classification Rules, or regulations of other carriers as applicable to the mode of transportation. On the front of the package, the Contractor shall clearly identify the contract number under which the product is being provided.

Section E

SECTION E - INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE

E.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following contract clauses pertinent to this section are hereby incorporated by reference (by Citation Number, Title, and Date) in accordance with the clause at FAR "52.252-2 CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE" in Section I of this contract. See FAR 52.252-2 for an internet address (if specified) for electronic access to the full text of a clause.

NUMBER	TITLE	DATE
	FEDERAL ACQUISITION REGULATION (48 CFR Chap	oter 1)
52.246-4	INSPECTION OF SERVICESFIXED-PRICE	AUG 1996

E.2 PLACE OF INSPECTION AND ACCEPTANCE (MAR 1987)

Inspection and acceptance of the deliverable items to be furnished hereunder shall be made by the Project Officer at the destination.

1

SECTION F - DELIVERIES OR PERFORMANCE

F.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following contract clauses pertinent to this section are hereby incorporated by reference (by Citation Number, Title, and Date) in accordance with the clause at FAR "52.252-2 CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE" in Section I of this contract. See FAR 52.252-2 for an internet address (if specified) for electronic access to the full text of a clause.

NUMBER	TITLE FEDERAL ACQUISITION REGULATION (48 CFF	DATE R Chapter 1)
52.242-15	STOP-WORK ORDER	AUG 1989
52.247-35	F.O.B. DESTINATION, WITHIN CONSIGNEE'S PREMISES	APR 1984
52.247-55	F.O.B. POINT FOR DELIVERY OF GOVERNMENT-FURNISHED PROPERTY	JUN 2003

F.2 2052.211-70 PREPARATION OF TECHNICAL REPORTS (JAN 1993)

All technical reports required by Section C and all Technical Progress Reports required by Section F are to be prepared in accordance with NRC Management Directive 3.7, "NUREG Series Publications." Management Directive 3.7 is not applicable to any Contractor Spending Plan (CSP) and any Financial Status Report that may be included in this contract. Management Directive 3.7 may be accessed electronically at the following address: http://www.nrc.gov/reading-rm/doc-collections/nuregs/

F.3 DELIVERY SCHEDULE

Deliverable	Schedule
Kick-off meeting	Within 7 working days of contract award
Meetings (i.e. Management, Technical)	As determined by the Project Manager
Task Order Project Plan	Within 7 working days of task order award
Technical Progress Report	Monthly within 15 calendar days after the end of the report period

F.4 PLACE OF DELIVERY--REPORTS (JUN 1988)

The items to be furnished hereunder shall be delivered, with all charges paid by the Contractor, to:

(a) Project Officer (1 hard & electronic copy)

Roya Noory

Ph. (301) 415-6868,

Section F

Fax (301) 415-7714 Email: roya.noory@nrc.gov

(b) Contracting Officer (1 copy)

F.5 DURATION OF CONTRACT PERIOD (MAR 1987) ALTERNATE 4 (JUN 1988)

The ordering period for this contract shall commence on February 22, 2008 and will expire on February 21, 2009. Any orders issued during this period shall be completed within the time specified in the order, unless otherwise specified herein. (See 52.216-18 - Ordering.) The term of this contract may be extended at the option of the Government until all options are exercised.

SECTION G - CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION DATA

G.1 PROJECT OFFICER AUTHORITY ALTERNATE 2 (FEBRUARY 2004)

(a) The contracting officer's authorized representative hereinafter referred to as the project officer for this contract is:

Name: Roya Noory

Address: U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission T-4A45 Washington, DC 20555

Telephone Number: 301-415-6868

Email: roya.noory@nrc.gov

(b) The project officer shall:

(1) Monitor contractor performance and recommend changes in requirements to the contracting officer.

(2) Inspect and accept products/services provided under the contract.

(3) Review all contractor invoices/vouchers requesting payment for products/services provided under the contract and make recommendations for approval, disapproval, or suspension.

(4) Immediately notify the Security Branch, Division of Facilities and Security (SB/DFS) (via e-mail) when a contractor employee no longer requires access authorization and return of any NRC issued badge to SB/DFS within three days after their termination.

(c) The project officer may not make changes to the express terms and conditions of this contract.

G.2 2052.216-72 TASK ORDER PROCEDURES (OCT 1999)

(a) Task order request for proposal. When a requirement within the scope of work for this contract is identified, the contracting officer shall transmit to the contractor a Task Order Request for Proposal (TORFP) which may include the following, as appropriate:

(1) Scope of work/meetings/travel and deliverables;

(2) Reporting requirements;

(3) Period of performance - place of performance;

(4) Applicable special provisions;

(5) Technical skills required; and

(6) Estimated level of effort.

Section G

(b) Task order technical proposal. By the date specified in the TORFP, the contractor shall deliver to the contracting officer a written or verbal (as specified in the TORFP technical proposal submittal instructions) technical proposal that provides the technical information required by the TORFP.

(c) Cost proposal. The contractor's cost proposal for each task order must be fully supported by cost and pricing data adequate to establish the reasonableness of the proposed amounts. When the contractor's estimated cost for the proposed task order exceeds \$100,000 and the period of performance exceeds six months, the contractor may be required to submit a Contractor Spending Plan (CSP) as part of its cost proposal. The TORP indicates if a CSP is required.

(d) Task order award. The contractor shall perform all work described in definitized task orders issued by the contracting officer. Definitized task orders include the following:

(1) Statement of work/meetings/travel and deliverables;

(2) Reporting requirements;

(3) Period of performance;

(4) Key personnel;

(5) Applicable special provisions; and

(6) Total task order amount including any fixed fee.

G.3 2052.216-73 ACCELERATED TASK ORDER PROCEDURES (JAN 1993)

(a) The NRC may require the contractor to begin work before receiving a definitized task order from the contracting officer. Accordingly, when the contracting officer verbally authorizes the work, the contractor shall proceed with performance of the task order subject to the monetary limitation established for the task order by the contracting officer.

(b) When this accelerated procedure is employed by the NRC, the contractor agrees to begin promptly negotiating with the contracting officer the terms of the definitive task order and agrees to submit a cost proposal with supporting cost or pricing data. If agreement on a definitized task order is not reached by the target date mutually agreed upon by the contractor and contracting officer, the contracting officer may determine a reasonable price and/or fee in accordance with Subpart 15.8 and Part 31 of the FAR, subject to contractor appeal as provided in 52.233-1, Disputes. In any event, the contractor shall proceed with completion of the task order, subject only to the monetary limitation established by the contracting officer and the terms and conditions of the basic contract.

G.4 2052.235-71 SAFETY, HEALTH, AND FIRE PROTECTION (JAN 1993)

The contractor shall take all reasonable precautions in the performance of the work under this contract to protect the health and safety of its employees and of members of the public, including NRC employees and contractor personnel, and to minimize danger from all hazards to life and property. The contractor shall comply with all applicable health, safety, and fire protection regulations and requirements (including reporting requirements) of the Commission and the Department of Labor. If the contractor fails to comply with these regulations or requirements, the contracting office may, without prejudice to any other legal or contractual rights of the Commission, issue an order stopping all or any part of the work. Thereafter, a start work order for resumption of work may be issued at the discretion of the contracting officer. The contractor may not make a

Section G

claim for an extension of time or for compensation or damages by reason of, or in connection with, this type of work stoppage.

G.5 2052.211-71 TECHNICAL PROGRESS REPORT (JAN 1993)

The contractor shall provide a monthly Technical Progress Report to the project officer and the contracting officer. The report is due within 15 calendar days after the end of the report period and must identify the title of the project, the contract number, appropriate financial tracking code specified by the NRC Project Officer, project manager and/or principal investigator, the contract period of performance, and the period covered by the report. Each report must include the following for each discrete task/task order:

(a) A listing of the efforts completed during the period, and milestones reached or, if missed, an explanation provided;

(b) Any problems or delays encountered or anticipated and recommendations for resolution. If the recommended resolution involves a contract modification, e.g., change in work requirements, level of effort (cost) or schedule delay, the contractor shall submit a separate letter to the contracting officer identifying the required change and estimated cost impact.

(c) A summary of progress to date; and

(d) Plans for the next reporting period.

G.6 ORDERING PROCEDURES (MAY 1991)

(a) The following individuals are authorized to issue delivery orders under this contract:

Only the Contracting Officer may issue orders under this contract.

(b) All delivery orders shall be prepared in accordance with FAR 16.506 and may be issued in writing, orally, or by written telecommunications.

SECTION H - SPECIAL CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS

H.1 2052.204.70 SECURITY (MAR 2004)

(a) Contract Security and/or Classification Requirements (NRC Form 187). The policies, procedures, and criteria of the NRC Security Program, NRC Management Directive (MD) 12 (including MD 12.1, "NRC Facility Security Program;" MD 12.2, "NRC Classified Information Security Program;" MD 12.3, "NRC Personnel Security Program;" MD 12.4, "NRC Telecommunications Systems Security Program;" MD 12.5, "NRC Automated Information Systems Security Program;" and MD 12.6, "NRC Sensitive Unclassified Information Security Program", apply to performance of this contract, subcontract or other activity. This MD is incorporated into this contract by reference as though fully set forth herein. The attached NRC Form 187 (See List of Attachments) furnishes the basis for providing security and classification requirements to prime contractors, subcontractors, or others (e.g., bidders) who have or may have an NRC contractual relationship that requires access to classified Restricted Data or National Security Information or matter, access to sensitive unclassified information (e.g., Safeguards), access to sensitive Information Technology (IT) systems or data, unescorted access to NRC controlled buildings/space, or unescorted access to protected and vital areas of nuclear power plants.

(b) It is the contractor's duty to protect National Security Information, Restricted Data, and Formerly Restricted Data. The contractor shall, in accordance with the Commission's security regulations and requirements, be responsible for protecting National Security Information, Restricted Data, and Formerly Restricted Data, and for protecting against sabotage, espionage, loss, and theft, the classified documents and material in the contractor's possession in connection with the performance of work under this contract. Except as otherwise expressly provided in this contract, the contractor shall, upon completion or termination of this contract, transmit to the Commission any classified matter in the possession of the contractor or any person under the contractor's control in connection with performance of this contract. If retention by the contractor of any classified matter is required after the completion or termination of the contract and the retention is approved by the contracting officer, the contractor shall complete a certificate of possession to be furnished to the Commission specifying the classified matter to be retained. The certification must identify the items and types or categories of matter retained, the conditions governing the retention of the matter and their period of retention, if known. If the retention is approved by the contracting officer retained.

(c) In connection with the performance of the work under this contract, the contractor may be furnished, or may develop or acquire, safeguards information, or confidential or privileged technical, business, or financial information, including Commission plans, policies, reports, financial plans, internal data protected by the Privacy Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93.579), or other information which has not been released to the public or has been determined by the Commission to be otherwise exempt from disclosure to the public. The contractor shall ensure that information protected from public disclosure is maintained as required by NRC regulations and policies, as cited in this contract or as otherwise provided by the NRC. The contractor will not directly or indirectly duplicate, disseminate, or disclose the information in whole or in part to any other person or organization except as may be necessary to perform the work under this contract. The contractor agrees to return the information to the Commission or otherwise dispose of it at the direction of the contracting officer. Failure to comply with this clause is grounds for termination of this contract.

(d) Regulations. The contractor agrees to conform to all security regulations and requirements of the Commission which are subject to change as directed by the NRC Division of Facilities and Security (DFS) and the Contracting Officer. These changes will be under the authority of the FAR Changes clause referenced in this document.

Section H

The contractor agrees to comply with the security requirements set forth in NRC Management Directive 12.1, NRC Facility Security Program which is incorporated into this contract by reference as though fully set forth herein. Attention is directed specifically to the section titled "Infractions and Violations," including "Administrative Actions" and "Reporting Infractions."

(e) Definition of National Security Information. The term National Security Information, as used in this clause, means information that has been determined pursuant to Executive Order 12958 or any predecessor order to require protection against unauthorized disclosure and that is so designated.

(f) Definition of Restricted Data. The term Restricted Data, as used in this clause, means all data concerning design, manufacture, or utilization of atomic weapons; the production of special nuclear material; or the use of special nuclear material in the production of energy, but does not include data declassified or removed from the Restricted Data category pursuant to Section 142 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended.

(g) Definition of Formerly Restricted Data. The term Formerly Restricted Data, as used in this clause, means all data removed from the Restricted Data category under Section 142-d of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended.

(h) Definition of Safeguards Information. Sensitive unclassified information that specifically identifies the detailed security measures of a licensee or an applicant for the physical protection of special nuclear material; or security measures for the physical protection and location of certain plant equipment vital to the safety of production of utilization facilities. Protection of this information is required pursuant to Section 147 of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended.

(i) Security Clearance. The contractor may not permit any individual to have access to Restricted Data, Formerly Restricted Data, or other classified information, except in accordance with the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, and the Commission's regulations or requirements applicable to the particular type or category of classified information to which access is required. The contractor shall also execute a Standard Form 312, Classified Information Nondisclosure Agreement, when access to classified information is required.

(j) Criminal Liabilities. It is understood that disclosure of National Security Information, Restricted Data, and Formerly Restricted Data relating to the work or services ordered hereunder to any person not entitled to receive it, or failure to safeguard any Restricted Data, Formerly Restricted Data, or any other classified matter that may come to the contractor or any person under the contractor's control in connection with work under this contract, may subject the contractor, its agents, employees, or subcontractors to criminal liability under the laws of the United States. (See the Atomic Energy Act of 1954, as amended, 42 U.S.C. 2011 et seq.; 18 U.S.C. 793 and 794; and Executive Order 12958.)

(k) Subcontracts and Purchase Orders. Except as otherwise authorized in writing by the contracting officer, the contractor shall insert provisions similar to the foregoing in all subcontracts and purchase orders under this contract.

(I) In performing the contract work, the contractor shall classify all documents, material, and equipment originated or generated by the contractor in accordance with guidance issued by the Commission. Every subcontract and purchase order issued hereunder involving the origination or generation of classified documents, material, and equipment must provide that the subcontractor or supplier assign classification to all documents, material, and equipment in accordance with guidance furnished by the contractor.

H.2 SECURITY REQUIREMENTS FOR INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY LEVEL I OR LEVEL II ACCESS APPROVAL (JUL 2007)

Section H

The proposer/Contractor must identify all individuals and propose the level of Information Technology (IT) approval for each, using the following guidance. The NRC sponsoring office shall make the final determination of the level, if any, of IT approval required for all individuals working under this contract. The Government shall have and exercise full and complete control and discretion over granting, denying, withholding, or terminating IT access approvals for individuals performing work under this contract.

The Contractor shall conduct a preliminary security interview or review for each IT level I or II access approval Contractor applicant and submit to the Government only the names of candidates that have a reasonable probability of obtaining the level of IT security access for which the candidate has been proposed. The Contractor will pre-screen its applicants for the following:

(a) felony arrest in the last seven years; (b) alcohol related arrest within the last five years; (c) record of any military courts-martial convictions in the past ten years; (d) illegal use of narcotics or other controlled substances possession in the past year, or illegal purchase, production, transfer, or distribution of arcotics or other controlled substances in the last seven years; (e) delinquency on any federal debts or bankruptcy in the last seven years.

The Contractor shall make a written record of its pre-screening interview or review (including any information to mitigate the responses to items listed in (a) - (e)), and have the applicant verify the pre-screening record or review, sign and date it. Two copies of the signed Contractor's pre-screening record or review will be supplied to FSB/DFS with the Contractor employee's completed building access application package.

The Contractor shall further ensure that its employees, any subcontractor employees and consultants complete all IT access security applications required by this clause within ten business days of notification by FSB/DFS of initiation of the application process. Timely receipt of properly completed records of the prescreening record and IT access security applications (submitted for candidates that have a reasonable probability of obtaining the level of security assurance necessary for access to NRC's facilities) is a contract requirement. Failure of the Contractor to comply with this contract administration requirement may be a basis to cancel the award, or terminate the contract for default, or offset from the contract's invoiced cost or price the NRC's incurred costs or delays as a result of inadequate pre-screening by the Contractor. In the event of cancellation or termination, the NRC may select another firm for contract award.

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS FOR IT LEVEL I

Performance under this contract will involve prime Contractor personnel, subcontractors or others who perform services requiring direct access to or operate agency sensitive information technology systems or data (IT Level I). The IT Level I involves responsibility for the planning, direction, and implementation of a computer security program; major responsibility for the direction, planning, and design of a computer system, including hardware and software; or the capability to access a computer system during its operation or maintenance in such a way that could cause or that has a relatively high risk of causing grave damage; or the capability to realize a significant personal gain from computer access.

A Contractor employee shall not have access to sensitive information technology systems or data until he/she is approved by FSB/DFS. Temporary IT access may be approved based on a favorable review or adjudication of their security forms and checks. Final IT access may be approved based on a favorably review or adjudication. However, temporary access authorization approval will be revoked and the employee may subsequently be denied IT access in the event the employee's investigation cannot be favorably adjudicated. Such an employee will not be authorized to work under any NRC contract requiring IT access without the approval of FSB/DFS. Where temporary access authorization has been revoked or denied, the Contractor is responsible for assigning another individual to perform the necessary work under this contract without delay to the contract's performance schedule, or without adverse impact to any other terms or conditions of the contract. When an individual receives final IT access, the individual will be subject to a reinvestigation every ten years.

Section H

The Contractor shall submit a completed security forms packet, including the OPM Standard Form (SF) 85P (Questionnaire for Public Trust Positions), two copies of the Contractor's signed pre-screening record and two FD 258 fingerprint charts, through the PO to FSB/DFS for review and favorable adjudication, prior to the individual performing work under this contract. The Contractor shall assure that all forms are accurate, complete, and legible. Based on FSB/DFS review of the Contractor applicant's security forms and/or the receipt of adverse information by NRC, the individual may be denied access to NRC facilities, sensitive information technology systems or data until a final determination is made of his/her eligibility.

In accordance with NRCAR 2052.204 70 "Security," IT Level I Contractors shall be subject to the attached NRC Form 187 (See Section J for List of Attachments) and SF- 85P which furnishes the basis for providing security requirements to prime Contractors, subcontractors or others (e.g., bidders) who have or may have an NRC contractual relationship which requires access to or operation of agency sensitive information technology systems or remote development and/or analysis of sensitive information technology systems or data or other access to such systems and data; access on a continuing basis (in excess more than 30 calendar days) to NRC buildings; or otherwise requires issuance of an unescorted NRC badge.

SECURITY REQUIREMENTS FOR IT LEVEL II

Performance under this contract will involve Contractor personnel that develop and/or analyze sensitive information technology systems or data or otherwise have access to such systems or data (IT Level II).

The IT Level II involves responsibility for the planning, design, operation, or maintenance of a computer system and all other computer or IT positions.

A Contractor employee shall not have access to sensitive information technology systems or data until he/she is approved by FSB/DFS. Temporary access may be approved based on a favorable review of their security forms and checks. Final IT access may be approved based on a favorably adjudication. However, temporary access authorization approval will be revoked and the employee may subsequently be denied IT access in the event the employee's investigation cannot be favorably adjudicated. Such an employee will not be authorized to work under any NRC contract requiring IT access without the approval of FSB/DFS. Where temporary access authorization has been revoked or denied, the Contractor is responsible for assigning another individual to perform the necessary work under this contract without delay to the contract's performance schedule, or without adverse impact to any other terms or conditions of the contract. When an individual receives final IT access, the individual will be subject to a review or reinvestigation every ten years.

The Contractor shall submit a completed security forms packet, including the OPM Standard Form (SF) 85P (Questionnaire for Public Trust Positions), two copies of the Contractor's signed pre-screening record and two FD 258 fingerprint charts, through the PO to FSB/DFS for review and favorable adjudication, prior to the individual performing work under this contract. The Contractor shall assure that all forms are accurate, complete, and legible. Based on FSB/DFS review of the Contractor applicant's security forms and/or the receipt of adverse information by NRC, the individual may be denied access to NRC facilities, sensitive information technology systems or data until a final determination is made of his/her eligibility.

In accordance with NRCAR 2052.204 70 "Security," IT Level II Contractors shall be subject to the attached NRC Form 187 (See Section J for List of Attachments), SF- 85P, and Contractor's record of the pre-screening which furnishes the basis for providing security requirements to prime Contractors, subcontractors or others (e.g. bidders) who have or may have an NRC contractual relationship which requires access to or operation of agency sensitive information technology systems or remote development and/or analysis of sensitive information technology systems or other access to such systems or data; access on a continuing basis (in excess of more than 30 calendar days) to NRC buildings; or otherwise requires issuance of an unescorted NRC badge.

CANCELLATION OR TERMINATION OF IT ACCESS/REQUEST

Section H

When a request for IT access is to be withdrawn or canceled, the Contractor shall immediately notify the PO by telephone in order that he/she will immediately contact FSB/DFS so that the access review may be promptly discontinued. The notification shall contain the full name of the individual, and the date of the request. Telephone notifications must be promptly confirmed by the Contractor in writing to the PO who will forward the confirmation via email to FSB/DFS. Additionally, FSB/DFS must be immediately notified in writing when an individual no longer requires access to NRC sensitive automated information technology systems or data, including the voluntary or involuntary separation of employment of an individual who has been approved for or is being processed for IT access.

H.3 2052.204-71 BADGE REQUIREMENTS FOR UNESCORTED BUILDING ACCESS TO NRC FACILITIES (MAR 2006)

During the life of this contract, the rights of ingress and egress for contractor personnel must be made available, as required, provided that the individual has been approved for unescorted access after a favorable adjudication from the Security Branch, Division of Facilities and Security (SB/DFS).

In this regard, all contractor personnel whose duties under this contract require their presence on site shall be clearly identifiable by a distinctive badge furnished by the NRC. The Project Officer shall assist the contractor in obtaining badges for the contractor personnel. All contractor personnel must present two forms of Identity Source Documents (I-9). One of the documents must be a valid picture ID issued by a state or by the Federal Government. Original I-9 documents must be presented in person for certification. A list of acceptable documents can be found at http://www.usdoj.gov/crt/recruit_employ/i9form.pdf. It is the sole responsibility of the contractor to ensure that each employee has a proper NRC-issued identification/badge at all times. All photo-identification badges must be immediately (no later than three days) delivered to SB/DFS for cancellation or disposition upon the termination of employment of any contractor personnel. Contractor personnel must display any NRC issued badge in clear view at all times during on site performance under this contract. It is the contractor's duty to assure that contractor personnel enter only those work areas necessary for performance of contract work, and to assure the protection of any Government records or data that contractor personnel may come into contact with.

H.4 2052.209-72 CONTRACTOR ORGANIZATIONAL CONFLICTS OF INTEREST (JAN 1993)

(a) Purpose. The primary purpose of this clause is to aid in ensuring that the contractor:

(1) Is not placed in a conflicting role because of current or planned interests (financial, contractual, organizational, or otherwise) which relate to the work under this contract; and

(2) Does not obtain an unfair competitive advantage over other parties by virtue of its performance of this contract.

(b) Scope. The restrictions described apply to performance or participation by the contractor, as defined in 48 CFR 2009.570-2 in the activities covered by this clause.

(c) Work for others.

(1) Notwithstanding any other provision of this contract, during the term of this contract, the contractor agrees to forego entering into consulting or other contractual arrangements with any firm or organization the result of which may give rise to a conflict of interest with respect to the work being performed under this contract. The contractor shall ensure that all employees under this contract abide by the provision of this clause. If the contractor has reason to believe, with respect to itself or any employee, that any proposed consultant or other contractual arrangement with any firm or organization may involve a potential conflict of

Section H

interest, the contractor shall obtain the written approval of the contracting officer before the execution of such contractual arrangement.

(2) The contractor may not represent, assist, or otherwise support an NRC licensee or applicant undergoing an NRC audit, inspection, or review where the activities that are the subject of the audit, inspection, or review are the same as or substantially similar to the services within the scope of this contract (or task order as appropriate) except where the NRC licensee or applicant requires the contractor's support to explain or defend the contractor's prior work for the utility or other entity which NRC questions.

(3) When the contractor performs work for the NRC under this contract at any NRC licensee or applicant site, the contractor shall neither solicit nor perform work in the same or similar technical area for that licensee or applicant organization for a period commencing with the award of the task order or beginning of work on the site (if not a task order contract) and ending one year after completion of all work under the associated task order, or last time at the site (if not a task order contract).

(4) When the contractor performs work for the NRC under this contract at any NRC licensee or applicant site,

(i) The contractor may not solicit work at that site for that licensee or applicant during the period of performance of the task order or the contract, as appropriate.

(ii) The contractor may not perform work at that site for that licensee or applicant during the period of performance of the task order or the contract, as appropriate, and for one year thereafter.

(iii) Notwithstanding the foregoing, the contracting officer may authorize the contractor to solicit or perform this type of work (except work in the same or similar technical area) if the contracting officer determines that the situation will not pose a potential for technical bias or unfair competitive advantage.

(d) Disclosure after award.

(1) The contractor warrants that to the best of its knowledge and belief, and except as otherwise set forth in this contract, that it does not have any organizational conflicts of interest as defined in 48 CFR 2009.570-2.

(2) The contractor agrees that if, after award, it discovers organizational conflicts of interest with respect to this contract, it shall make an immediate and full disclosure in writing to the contracting officer. This statement must include a description of the action which the contractor has taken or proposes to take to avoid or mitigate such conflicts. The NRC may, however, terminate the contract if termination is in the best interest of the Government.

(3) It is recognized that the scope of work of a task-order-type contract necessarily encompasses a broad spectrum of activities. Consequently, if this is a task-order-type contract, the contractor agrees that it will disclose all proposed new work involving NRC licensees or applicants which comes within the scope of work of the underlying contract. Further, if this contract involves work at a licensee or applicant site, the contractor agrees to exercise diligence to discover and disclose any new work at that licensee or applicant site. This disclosure must be made before the submission of a bid or proposal to the utility or other regulated entity and must be received by the NRC at least 15 days before the proposed award date in any event, unless a written justification demonstrating urgency and due diligence to discover and disclose is provided by the contractor and approved by the contracting officer. The disclosure must include the statement of work, the dollar value of the proposed contract, and any other documents that are needed to fully describe the proposed work for the regulated entity. NRC may deny approval of the disclosed work only when the NRC has issued a task order which includes the technical area and, if site-specific, the site, or has plans to issue a task order which includes the technical area and, if site-specific, the site, or when the work violates paragraphs (c)(2), (c)(3) or (c)(4) of this section.

H-6

Section H

(e) Access to and use of information.

(1) If in the performance of this contract, the contractor obtains access to information, such as NRC plans, policies, reports, studies, financial plans, internal data protected by the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. Section 552a (1988)), or the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. Section 552 (1986)), the contractor agrees not to:

(i) Use this information for any private purpose until the information has been released to the public;

(ii) Compete for work for the Commission based on the information for a period of six months after either the completion of this contract or the release of the information to the public, whichever is first;

(iii) Submit an unsolicited proposal to the Government based on the information until one year after the release of the information to the public; or

(iv) Release the information without prior written approval by the contracting officer unless the information has previously been released to the public by the NRC.

(2) In addition, the contractor agrees that, to the extent it receives or is given access to proprietary data, data protected by the Privacy Act of 1974 (5 U.S.C. Section 552a (1988)), or the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. Section 552 (1986)), or other confidential or privileged technical, business, or financial information under this contract, the contractor shall treat the information in accordance with restrictions placed on use of the information.

(3) Subject to patent and security provisions of this contract, the contractor shall have the right to use technical data it produces under this contract for private purposes provided that all requirements of this contract have been met.

(f) Subcontracts. Except as provided in 48 CFR 2009.570-2, the contractor shall include this clause, including this paragraph, in subcontracts of any tier. The terms contract, contractor, and contracting officer, must be appropriately modified to preserve the Government's rights.

(g) Remedies. For breach of any of the above restrictions, or for intentional nondisclosure or misrepresentation of any relevant interest required to be disclosed concerning this contract or for such erroneous representations that necessarily imply bad faith, the Government may terminate the contract for default, disqualify the contractor from subsequent contractual efforts, and pursue other remedies permitted by law or this contract.

(h) Waiver. A request for waiver under this clause must be directed in writing to the contracting officer in accordance with the procedures outlined in 48 CFR 2009.570-9.

(i) Follow-on effort. The contractor shall be ineligible to participate in NRC contracts, subcontracts, or proposals therefore (solicited or unsolicited), which stem directly from the contractor's performance of work under this contract. Furthermore, unless so directed in writing by the contracting officer, the contractor may not perform any technical consulting or management support services work or evaluation activities under this contract on any of its products or services or the products or services of another firm if the contractor has been substantially involved in the development or marketing of the products or services.

(1) If the contractor, under this contract, prepares a complete or essentially complete statement of work or specifications, the contractor is not eligible to perform or participate in the initial contractual effort which is based on the statement of work or specifications. The contractor may not incorporate its products or services in the statement of work or specifications unless so directed in writing by the contracting officer, in which case the restrictions in this paragraph do not apply.

Section H

(2) Nothing in this paragraph precludes the contractor from offering or selling its standard commercial items to the Government.

H.5 2052.215-70 KEY PERSONNEL (JAN 1993)

(a) The following individuals are considered to be essential to the successful performance of the work hereunder:

The contractor agrees that personnel may not be removed from the contract work or replaced without compliance with paragraphs (b) and (c) of this section.

(b) If one or more of the key personnel, for whatever reason, becomes, or is expected to become, unavailable for work under this contract for a continuous period exceeding 30 work days, or is expected to devote substantially less effort to the work than indicated in the proposal or initially anticipated, the contractor shall immediately notify the contracting officer and shall, subject to the concurrence of the contracting officer, promptly replace the personnel with personnel of at least substantially equal ability and qualifications.

(c) Each request for approval of substitutions must be in writing and contain a detailed explanation of the circumstances necessitating the proposed substitutions. The request must also contain a complete resume for the proposed substitute and other information requested or needed by the contracting officer to evaluate the proposed substitution. The contracting officer and the project officer shall evaluate the contractor's request and the contracting officer shall promptly notify the contractor of his or her decision in writing.

(d) If the contracting officer determines that suitable and timely replacement of key personnel who have been reassigned, terminated, or have otherwise become unavailable for the contract work is not reasonably forthcoming, or that the resultant reduction of productive effort would be so substantial as to impair the successful completion of the contract or the service order, the contract may be terminated by the contracting officer for default or for the convenience of the Government, as appropriate. If the contracting officer finds the contractor at fault for the condition, the contract price or fixed fee may be equitably adjusted downward to compensate the Government for any resultant delay, loss, or damage.

H.6 DISSEMINATION OF INFORMATION

There shall be no dissemination or publication, except within and between the Contractor and any subcontractors, of information developed under this contract or contained in the reports to be furnished pursuant to this contract without prior written approval from the Contracting Officer.

H.7 RELEASE OF REPORTS

The Contractor is prohibited from releasing to any source, other than the sponsoring activity, any interim, draft and final reports or information pertaining to services performed under this contract until report approval or official review has been obtained. Furthermore, the contractor shall insure that the cover of all interim, draft and final reports contain the following statement: "The view, opinions, and/or findings contained in this report are those of the author(s) and should not be construed as an official Government position, policy or decision, unless so designated by other documentation."

H.8 RELEASE OF NEWS INFORMATION

No news release (including photographs and films, public announcements, denial or confirmation of same) on any part of the subject matter of this contract or any phase of any program hereunder shall b made without the prior written approval of the Contracting Officer.

H.9 GOVERNMENT FURNISHED EQUIPMENT/PROPERTY (JANUARY 2001)

(a) The NRC will provide the contractor with the following items for use under this contract:

- 1. Conference Rooms with telephones
- 2. Workstation, desktop computer, and telephone
- 3. Applicable regulations, manuals, texts, and briefs

(b) The above listed equipment/property is hereby transferred from contract/agreement N/A.

(c) Only the equipment/property listed above in the quantities shown will be provided by the Government. The contractor shall be responsible and accountable for all Government property provided under this contract and shall comply with the provisions of the FAR Government Property Clause under this contract and FAR Subpart 45.5, as in effect on the date of this contract. The contractor shall investigate and provide written notification to the NRC Contracting Officer (CO) and the NRC Division of Facilities and Security, Physical Security Branch of all cases of loss, damage, or destruction of Government property in its possession or control not later than 24 hours after discovery. The contractor must report stolen Government property to the local police and a copy of the police report must be provided to the CO and to the Division of Facilities and Security, Physical Security Branch.

(d) All other equipment/property required in performance of the contract shall be furnished by the Contractor.

H.10 SEAT BELTS

Contractors, subcontractors, and grantees, are encouraged to adopt and enforce on-the-job seat belt policies and programs for their employees when operating company-owned, rented, or personally owned vehicles.

H.11 ANNUAL AND FINAL CONTRACTOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATIONS

Annual and final evaluations of contractor performance under this contract will be prepared in accordance with FAR 42.15, "Contractor Performance Information," normally at the time the contractor is notified of the NRC's intent to exercise the contract option. If the multi-year contract does not have option years, then an annual evaluation will be prepared (state time for annual evaluation). Final evaluations of contractor performance will be prepared at the expiration of the contract during the contract closeout process.

The Contracting Officer will transmit the NRC Project Officer's annual and final contractor performance evaluations to the contractor's Project Manager, unless otherwise instructed by the contractor. The contractor will be permitted thirty days to review the document. The contractor may concur without comment, submit additional information, or request a meeting to discuss the performance evaluation. The Contracting Officer may request the contractor's Project Manger to attend a meeting to discuss the performance evaluation.

Where a contractor concurs with, or takes no exception to an annual performance evaluation, the Contracting Officer will consider such evaluation final and releasable for source selection purposes. Disagreements

Section H

between the parties regarding a performance evaluation will be referred to an individual one level above the Contracting Officer, whose decision will be final.

The Contracting Officer will send a copy of the completed evaluation report, marked "For Official Use Only," to the contractor's Project Manager for their records as soon as practicable after it has been finalized. The completed evaluation report also will be used as a tool to improve communications between the NRC and the contractor and to improve contract performance.

The completed annual performance evaluation will be used to support future award decisions in accordance with FAR 42.1502(a) and 42.1503(c). During the period the information is being used to provide source selection information, the completed annual performance evaluation will be released to only two parties - the Federal government personnel performing the source selection evaluation and the contractor under evaluation if the contractor does not have a copy of the report already.

H.12 COMPENSATION FOR ON-SITE CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL (ALTERNATE 1)

a. NRC facilities may not be available due to (1) designated Federal holiday, any other day designated by Federal Statute, Executive Order, or by President's Proclamation; (2) early dismissal of NRC employees during working hours (e.g., special holidays or emergency situations); or (3) occurrence of emergency conditions during nonworking hours (e.g., inclement weather).

b. When NRC facilities are unavailable, the compensation and deduction policy stated below shall be followed for contractor employees performing work on-site at the NRC facility:

(SEE CLAUSE H.13 BELOW)

c. The contractor shall not charge the NRC for work performed by on- site contractor employees who were reassigned to perform other duties off site during the time the NRC facility was closed.

d. On-site contractor staff shall be guided by the instructions given by a third party (e.g., Montgomery County personnel, in the case of a water emergency) in situations which pose an immediate health or safety threat to employees.

e. The contractor's Project Director shall first consult the NRC Project Officer before authorizing leave for onsite personnel in situations which do not impose an immediate safety or health threat to employees (e.g., special holidays). That same day, the contractor must then alert the Contracting Officer of the NRC Project Officer's direction. The contractor shall continue to provide sufficient personnel to perform the requirements of essential tasks as defined in the Statement of Work which already are in operation or are scheduled.

H.13 HOLIDAYS AND ADMINISTRATIVE LEAVE

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission personnel observe the following days as holidays:

New Years Day Martin Luther Kings Birthday Presidents Day Memorial Day Independence Day Labor Day Columbus Day Veterans Day Thanksgiving Day Christmas Day

Any other day designated by Federal statute, by Executive Order, or by the Presidents proclamation.

When any such day falls on a Saturday the preceding Friday is observed. When any such day falls on a Sunday, the following Monday is observed. Observance of such days by Government personnel shall not be

Section H

cause for an extension to the delivery schedule or period of performance or adjustment to the price, except as set forth in the contract.

Except for designated around-the-clock personnel or emergency operations, Contractor personnel will not be able to perform on site under this contract with NRC on the holidays set forth above. The Contractor shall not charge any holiday as a direct charge to the contract. In the event that Contractor personnel work during a holiday other than those specified above, no form of holiday or other premium compensation will be reimbursed as either a direct or indirect charge. However, this does not preclude reimbursement for authorized overtime work.

In the event that NRC grants administrative leave to its Government employees at the site, on-site Contractor personnel shall also be dismissed if the site is being closed. However, the Contractor shall continue to provide sufficient personnel to perform around-the-clock requirements of critical efforts already in progress or scheduled, and shall be guided by the instructions issued by the Contractor personnel as a result of inclement weather, potentially hazardous conditions, explosions, or other special circumstances; the Contractor shall direct its staff as necessary to take actions such as reporting to its own site(s) or taking appropriate leave consistent with its policies. The cost of salaries or wages to the Contractor for the period of any such site closure are a reimbursable item of direct cost under the contract for employees whose regular time is normally a direct charge if they continue to perform contract work.

H.14 APPROPRIATE USE OF GOVERNMENT FURNISHED INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT) EQUIPMENT AND/ OR IT SERVICES/ ACCESS (MARCH 2002)

As part of contract performance the NRC may provide the contractor with information technology (IT) equipment and IT services or IT access as identified in the solicitation or subsequently as identified in the contract or delivery order. Government furnished IT equipment, or IT services, or IT access may include but is not limited to computers, copiers, facsimile machines, printers, pagers, software, phones, Internet access and use, and email access and use. The contractor (including the contractor's employees, consultants and subcontractors) shall use the government furnished IT equipment, and / or IT provided services, and/ or IT access solely to perform the necessary efforts required under the contract. The contractor (including the contractor's employees, consultants and subcontractors) are prohibited from engaging or using the government IT equipment and government provided IT services or IT access for any personal use, misuse, abuses or any other unauthorized usage.

The contractor is responsible for monitoring its employees, consultants and subcontractors to ensure that government furnished IT equipment and/ or IT services, and/ or IT access are not being used for personal use, misused or abused. The government reserves the right to withdraw or suspend the use of its government furnished IT equipment, IT services and/ or IT access arising from contractor personal usage, or misuse or abuse; and/ or to disallow any payments associated with contractor (including the contractor's employees, consultants and subcontractors) personal usage, misuses or abuses of IT equipment, IT services and/ or IT access; and/ or to terminate for cause the contract or delivery order arising from violation of this provision.

H.15 COMPLIANCE WITH U.S. IMMIGRATION LAWS AND REGULATIONS

NRC contractors are responsible to ensure that their alien personnel are not in violation of United States Immigration and Naturalization (INS) laws and regulations, including employment authorization documents and visa requirements. Each alien employee of the Contractor must be lawfully admitted for permanent residence as evidenced by Alien Registration Receipt Card Form 1-151 or must present other evidence from the Immigration and Naturalization Services that employment will not affect his/her immigration status. The INS Office of Business Liaison (OBL) provides information to contractors to help them understand the employment

Section H

eligibility verification process for non-US citizens. This information can be found on the INS website, http://www.ins.usdoj.gov/graphics/services/employerinfo/index.htm#obl.

The NRC reserves the right to deny or withdraw Contractor use or access to NRC facilities or its equipment/services, and/or take any number of contract administrative actions (e.g., disallow costs, terminate for cause) should the Contractor violate the Contractor's responsibility under this clause.

H.16 SAFETY OF ON-SITE CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL

Ensuring the safety of occupants of Federal buildings is a responsibility shared by the professionals implementing our security and safety programs and the persons being protected. The NRC's Office of Administration (ADM) Division of Facilities and Security (DFS) has coordinated an Occupant Emergency Plan (OEP) for NRC Headquarters buildings with local authorities. The OEP has been approved by the Montgomery County Fire and Rescue Service. It is designed to improve building occupants' chances of survival, minimize damage to property, and promptly account for building occupants when necessary.

The contractor's Project Director shall ensure that all personnel working full time on-site at NRC Headquarters read the NRC's OEP, provided electronically on the NRC Intranet at http://www.internal.nrc.gov/ADM/OEP.pdf The contractor's Project Director also shall emphasize to each staff member that they are to be familiar with and guided by the OEP, as well as by instructions given by emergency response personnel in situations which pose an immediate health or safety threat to building occupants.

The NRC Project Officer shall ensure that the contractor's Project Director has communicated the requirement for on-site contractor staff to follow the guidance in the OEP. The NRC Project Officer also will assist in accounting for on-site contract persons in the event of a major emergency (e.g., explosion occurs and casualties or injuries are suspected) during which a full evacuation will be required, including the assembly and accountability of occupants. The NRC DFS will conduct drills periodically to train occupants and assess these procedures.

H.17 NRC INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SECURITY TRAINING (AUG 2003)

NRC contractors shall ensure that their employees, consultants, and subcontractors with access to the agency's information technology (IT) equipment and/or IT services complete NRC's online initial and refresher IT security training requirements to ensure that their knowledge of IT threats, vulnerabilities, and associated countermeasures remains current. Both the initial and refresher IT security training courses generally last an hour or less and can be taken during the employee's regularly scheduled work day.

Contractor employees, consultants, and subcontractors shall complete the NRC's online, "Computer Security Awareness" course on the same day that they receive access to the agency's IT equipment and/or services, as their first action using the equipment/service. For those contractor employees, consultants, and subcontractors who are already working under this contract, the on-line training must be completed in accordance with agency Network Announcements issued throughout the year 2003 within three weeks of issuance of this modification.

Contractor employees, consultants, and subcontractors who have been granted access to NRC information technology equipment and/or IT services must continue to take IT security refresher training offered online by the NRC throughout the term of the contract. Contractor employees will receive notice of NRC's online IT security refresher training requirements through agency-wide notices.

The NRC reserves the right to deny or withdraw Contractor use or access to NRC IT equipment and/or services, and/or take other appropriate contract administrative actions (e.g., disallow costs, terminate for cause) should the Contractor violate the Contractor's responsibility under this clause.

Section H

H.18 WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTION FOR NRC CONTRACTOR AND SUBCONTRACTOR EMPLOYEES (JULY 2006)

(a) The U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) contractor and its subcontractor are subject to the Whistleblower Employee Protection public law provisions as codified at 42 U.S.C. 5851. NRC contractor(s) and subcontractor(s) shall comply with the requirements of this Whistleblower Employee Protection law, and the implementing regulations of the NRC and the Department of Labor (DOL). See, for example, DOL Procedures on Handling Complaints at 29 C.F.R. Part 24 concerning the employer obligations, prohibited acts, DOL procedures and the requirement for prominent posting of notice of Employee Rights at Appendix A to Part 24.

(b) Under this Whistleblower Employee Protection law, as implemented by regulations, NRC contractor and subcontractor employees are protected from discharge, reprisal, threats, intimidation, coercion, blacklisting or other employment discrimination practices with respect to compensation, terms, conditions or privileges of their employment because the contractor or subcontractor employee(s) has provided notice to the employer, refused to engage in unlawful practices, assisted in proceedings or testified on activities concerning alleged violations of the Atomic Energy Act of 1954 (as amended) and the Energy Reorganization Act of 1974 (as amended).

(c) The contractor shall insert this or the substance of this clause in any subcontracts involving work performed under this contract.

PART II - CONTRACT CLAUSES

SECTION I - CONTRACT CLAUSES

I.1 NOTICE LISTING CONTRACT CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

The following contract clauses pertinent to this section are hereby incorporated by reference (by Citation Number, Title, and Date) in accordance with the clause at FAR "52.252-2 CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE" in Section I of this contract. See FAR 52.252-2 for an internet address (if specified) for electronic access to the full text of a clause.

NUMBER	TITLE FEDERAL ACQUISITION REGULATION (48 CFR Cha	DATE
52.202-1	DEFINITIONS	JUL 2004
52.203-3	GRATUITIES	APR 1984
52.203-5	COVENANT AGAINST CONTINGENT FEES	APR 1984
52.203-6	RESTRICTIONS ON SUBCONTRACTOR SALES TO	SEP 2006
52.203-0	THE GOVERNMENT	SEF 2000
52.203-7	ANTI-KICKBACK PROCEDURES	JUL 1995
52.203-8	CANCELLATION, RESCISSION, AND RECOVERY	JAN 1997
	OF FUNDS FOR ILLEGAL OR IMPROPER	
	ACTIVITY	
52.203-10	PRICE OR FEE ADJUSTMENT FOR ILLEGAL OR	JAN 1997
	IMPROPER ACTIVITY	
52.203-12	LIMITATION ON PAYMENTS TO INFLUENCE	SEP 2007
	CERTAIN FEDERAL TRANSACTIONS	
52.204-4	PRINTED OR COPIED DOUBLE-SIDED	AUG 2000
	ON RECYCLED PAPER	
52.204-7	CENTRAL CONTRACTOR REGISTRATION	JUL 2006
52.204-9	PERSONAL IDENTITY VERIFICATION OF	SEP 2007
	CONTRACTOR PERSONNEL	
52.209-6	PROTECTING THE GOVERNMENT'S INTEREST	SEP 2006
	WHEN SUBCONTRACTING WITH CONTRACTORS	
	DEBARRED, SUSPENDED, OR PROPOSED FOR	
	DEBARMENT	•
52.215-2	AUDIT AND RECORDSNEGOTIATION	JUN 1999
52.215-8	ORDER OF PRECEDENCEUNIFORM CONTRACT	OCT 1997
	FORMAT	
52.215-10	PRICE REDUCTION FOR DEFECTIVE COST OR	OCT 1997
	PRICING DATA	
52.215-12	SUBCONTRACTOR COST OR PRICING DATA	OCT 1997
52.215-14	INTEGRITY OF UNIT PRICES	OCT 1997
	ALTERNATE I (OCT 1997)	
52.215-15	PENSION ADJUSTMENTS AND ASSET REVERSIONS	SOCT 2004
	(JAN 2004)	
52.215-18	REVERSION OR ADJUSTMENT OF PLANS FOR	JUL 2005
x	POSTRETIREMENT BENEFITS OTHER THAN	
	PENSIONS (PRB)	0.07 100-
52.215-19	NOTIFICATION OF OWNERSHIP CHANGES	OCT 1997

1-1

NRC-07-08-145	Section I	
52.219-6	NOTICE OF TOTAL SMALL BUSINESS SET-ASIDE	JUN 2003
52.219-8	UTILIZATION OF SMALL BUSINESS CONCERNS	MAY 2004
52.219-14	LIMITATIONS ON SUBCONTRACTING	DEC 1996
52.222-3	CONVICT LABOR	JUN 2003
52.222-21	PROHIBITION OF SEGREGATED FACILITIES	FEB 1999
52.222-26	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY	MAR 2007
52.222-35	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY FOR SPECIAL DISABLED	SEP 2006
	VETERANS, VETERANS OF THE VIETNAM ERA,	
	AND OTHER ELIGIBLE VETERANS	
52.222-36	AFFIRMATIVE ACTION FOR WORKERS WITH	JUN 1998
	DISABILITIES	
52.222-37	EMPLOYMENT REPORTS ON SPECIAL DISABLED	SEP 2006
,	VETERANS, VETERANS OF THE VIETNAM ERA,	
	AND OTHER ELIGIBLE VETERANS	
52.222-50	COMBATING TRAFFICKING IN PERSONS	AUG 2007
52.223-5	POLLUTION PREVENTION AND RIGHT-TO-KNOW	AUG 2003
	INFORMATION	
	ALTERNATE I (AUG 2003)	
52.223-6	DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE	MAY 2001
52.225-1	BUY AMERICAN ACTSUPPLIES	JUN 2003
52.225-13	RESTRICTIONS ON CERTAIN FOREIGN	FEB 2006
F0 007 4	PURCHASES	
52.227-1	AUTHORIZATION AND CONSENT	DEC 2007
52.227-2	NOTICE AND ASSISTANCE REGARDING PATENT	DEC 2007
F0 007 47		
52.227-17	RIGHTS IN DATASPECIAL WORKS	DEC 2007
52.228-5	INSURANCEWORK ON A GOVERNMENT	JAN 1997
52.229-4	INSTALLATION FEDERAL, STATE, AND LOCAL TAXES	APR 2003
02.229-4	(STATE AND LOCAL ADJUSTMENTS)	AFR 2003
52.232-1	PAYMENTS	APR 1984
52.232-8	DISCOUNTS FOR PROMPT PAYMENT	FEB 2002
52.232-0	EXTRAS	APR 1984
52.232-17	INTEREST	JUN 1996
52.232-23	ASSIGNMENT OF CLAIMS	JAN 1986
52.232-25	PROMPT PAYMENT	OCT 2003
52.232-34	PAYMENT BY ELECTRONIC FUNDS TRANSFER	MAY 1999
02.202 01	OTHER THAN CENTRAL CONTRACTOR	
	REGISTRATION	
52.233-3	PROTEST AFTER AWARD	AUG 1996
52.233-4	APPLICABLE LAW FOR BREACH OF	OCT 2004
52.237-2	PROTECTION OF GOVERNMENT BUILDINGS,	APR 1984
	EQUIPMENT, AND VEGETATION	
52.242-13	BANKRUPTCY	JUL 1995
52.243-1	CHANGESFIXED PRICE	AUG 1987
	ALTERNATE I (APR 1984)	
52.244-5	COMPETITION IN SUBCONTRACTING	DEC 1996
52.244-6	SUBCONTRACTS FOR COMMERCIAL ITEMS	MAR 2007
52.245-1	GOVERNMENT PROPERTY	JUN 2007
52.245-9	USE AND CHARGES	JUN 2007
52.246-23	LIMITATION OF LIABILITY	FEB 1997
52.248-1	VALUE ENGINEERING	FEB 2000
52.249-2	TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE OF THE	MAY 2004

I-2

Section I

	GOVERNMENT (FIXED-PRICE)	
52.249-8	DEFAULT (FIXED-PRICE SUPPLY AND SERVICE)	APR 1984
52.253-1	COMPUTER GENERATED FORMS	JAN 1991

I.2 52.216-18 ORDERING (OCT 1995)

(a) Any supplies and services to be furnished under this contract shall be ordered by issuance of delivery orders or task orders by the individuals or activities designated in the Schedule. Such orders may be issued from February 22, 2008 through February 21, 2009.

(b) All delivery orders or task orders are subject to the terms and conditions of this contract. In the event of conflict between a delivery order or task order and this contract, the contract shall control.

(c) If mailed, a delivery order or task order is considered "issued" when the Government deposits the order in the mail. Orders may be issued orally, by facsimile, or by electronic commerce methods only if authorized in the Schedule.

I.3 52.216-19 ORDER LIMITATIONS (OCT 1995)

(a) Minimum order. When the Government requires supplies or services covered by this contract in an amount of less than 1 hour, the Government is not obligated to purchase, nor is the Contractor obligated to furnish, those supplies or services under the contract.

(b) Maximum order. The Contractor is not obligated to honor--

(1) Any order for a single item in excess of 1920 hours;

(2) Any order for a combination of items in excess of 2586 hours; or

(3) A series of orders from the same ordering office within 15 days that together call for quantities exceeding the limitation in paragraph (b)(1) or (2) of this section.

(c) If this is a requirements contract (i.e., includes the Requirements clause at subsection 52.216-21 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation (FAR)), the Government is not required to order a part of any one requirement from the Contractor if that requirement exceeds the maximum-order limitations in paragraph (b) of this section.

(d) Notwithstanding paragraphs (b) and (c) of this section, the Contractor shall honor any order exceeding the maximum order limitations in paragraph (b), unless that order (or orders) is returned to the ordering office within 5 working days after issuance, with written notice stating the Contractor's intent not to ship the item (or items) called for and the reasons. Upon receiving this notice, the Government may acquire the supplies or services from another source.

I.4 52.216-22 INDEFINITE QUANTITY (OCT 1995)

(a) This is an indefinite-quantity contract for the supplies or services specified, and effective for the period stated, in the Schedule. The quantities of supplies and services specified in the Schedule are estimates only and are not purchased by this contract.

(b) Delivery or performance shall be made only as authorized by orders issued in accordance with the Ordering clause. The Contractor shall furnish to the Government, when and if ordered, the supplies or

Section I

services specified in the Schedule up to and including the quantity designated in the Schedule as the "maximum." The Government shall order at least the quantity of supplies or services designated in the Schedule as the "minimum."

(c) Except for any limitations on quantities in the Order Limitations clause or in the Schedule, there is no limit on the number of orders that may be issued. The Government may issue orders requiring delivery to multiple destinations or performance at multiple locations.

(d) Any order issued during the effective period of this contract and not completed within that period shall be completed by the Contractor within the time specified in the order. The contract shall govern the Contractor's and Government's rights and obligations with respect to that order to the same extent as if the order were completed during the contract's effective period; provided, that the Contractor shall not be required to make any deliveries under this contract after August 21, 2011.

I.5 52.217-8 OPTION TO EXTEND SERVICES (NOV 1999)

The Government may require continued performance of any services within the limits and at the rates specified in the contract. These rates may be adjusted only as a result of revisions to prevailing labor rates provided by the Secretary of Labor. The option provision may be exercised more than once, but the total extension of performance hereunder shall not exceed 6 months. The Contracting Officer may exercise the option by written notice to the Contractor within 60 days of expiration or as soon as funds are available thereafter.

I.6 52.217-9 OPTION TO EXTEND THE TERM OF THE CONTRACT (MAR 2000)

(a) The Government may extend the term of this contract by written notice to the Contractor within 60 days of expiration or as soon as funds avail. thereafter; provided that the Government gives the Contractor a preliminary written notice of its intent to extend at least 60 days days before the contract expires. The preliminary notice does not commit the Government to an extension.

(b) If the Government exercises this option, the extended contract shall be considered to include this option clause.

(c) The total duration of this contract, including the exercise of any options under this clause, shall not exceed 42 months.

I.7 52.219-11 SPECIAL 8(A) CONTRACT CONDITIONS (FEB 1990)

The Small Business Administration (SBA) agrees to the following:

(a) To furnish the supplies or services set forth in this contract according to the specifications and the terms and conditions hereof by subcontracting with an eligible concern pursuant to the provisions of section 8(a) of the Small Business Act, as amended (15 U.S.C. 637(a)).

(b) That in the event SBA does not award a subcontract for all or a part of the work hereunder, this contract may be terminated either in whole or in part without cost to either party.

(c) Except for novation agreements and advance payments, delegates to the Nuclear Regulatory Commission the responsibility for administering the subcontract to be awarded hereunder with complete authority to take any action on behalf of the Government under the terms and conditions of the subcontract;

1-4

Section I

provided, however, that the Nuclear Regulatory Commission shall give advance notice to the SBA before it issues a final notice terminating the right of a subcontractor to proceed with further performance, either in whole or in part, under the subcontract for default or for the convenience of the Government.

(d) That payments to be made under any subcontract awarded under this contract will be made directly to the subcontractor by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

(e) That the subcontractor awarded a subcontract hereunder shall have the right of appeal from decisions of the Contracting Officer cognizable under the "Disputes" clause of said subcontract.

(f) To notify the Nuclear Regulatory Commission Contracting Officer immediately upon notification by the subcontractor that the owner or owners upon whom 8(a) eligibility was based plan to relinquish ownership or control of the concern.

I.8 52.219-12 SPECIAL 8(A) SUBCONTRACT CONDITIONS (FEB 1990)

(a) The Small Business Administration (SBA) has entered into Contract No. NRC-07-08-145 with the Nuclear Regulatory Commission to furnish the supplies or services as described therein. A copy of the contract is attached hereto and made a part hereof.

(b) The HUMANTOUCH LLC hereafter referred to as the subcontractor, agrees and acknowledges as follows:

(1) That it will, for and on behalf of the SBA, fulfill and perform all of the requirements of Contract No. NRC-07-08-145 for the consideration stated therein and that it has read and is familiar with each and every part of the contract.

(2) That the SBA has delegated responsibility, except for novation agreements and advance payments, for the administration of this subcontract to the Nuclear Regulatory Commission with complete authority to take any action on behalf of the Government under the terms and conditions of this subcontract.

(3) That it will not subcontract the performance of any of the requirements of this subcontract to any lower tier subcontractor without the prior written approval of the SBA and the designated Contracting Officer of the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

(4) That it will notify the Nuclear Regulatory Commission Contracting Officer in writing immediately upon entering an agreement (either oral or written) to transfer all or part of its stock or other ownership interest to any other party.

(c) Payments, including any progress payments under this subcontract, will be made directly to the subcontractor by the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

I.9 52.219-28 POST-AWARD SMALL BUSINESS PROGRAM REREPRESENTATION (JUNE 2007)

(a) Definitions. As used in this clause-

Long-term contract means a contract of more than five years in duration, including options. However, the term does not include contracts that exceed five years in duration because the period of performance has been extended for a cumulative period not to exceed six months under the clause at 52.217-8, Option to Extend Services, or other appropriate authority.

Section I

Small business concern means a concern, including its affiliates, that is independently owned and operated, not dominant in the field of operation in which it is bidding on Government contracts, and qualified as a small business under the criteria in 13 CFR part 121 and the size standard in paragraph (c) of this clause.

(b) If the Contractor represented that it was a small business concern prior to award of this contract, the Contractor shall represent its size status according to paragraph (e) of this clause or, if applicable, paragraph (g) of this clause, upon the occurrence of any of the following:

(1) Within 30 days after execution of a novation agreement or within 30 days after modification of the contract to include this clause, if the novation agreement was executed prior to inclusion of this clause in the contract.

(2) Within 30 days after a merger or acquisition that does not require a novation or within 30 days after modification of the contract to include this clause, if the merger or acquisition occurred prior to inclusion of this clause in the contract.

(3) For long-term contracts-

(i) Within 60 to 120 days prior to the end of the fifth year of the contract; and

(ii) Within 60 to 120 days prior to the exercise date specified in the contract for any option thereafter.

(c) The Contractor shall represent its size status in accordance with the size standard in effect at the time of this rerepresentation that corresponds to the North American Industry Classification System (NAICS) code assigned to this contract. The small business size standard corresponding to this NAICS code can be found at http://www.sba.gov/services/contractingopportunities/sizestandardstopics/.

(d) The small business size standard for a Contractor providing a product which it does not manufacture itself, for a contract other than a construction or service contract, is 500 employees.

(e) Except as provided in paragraph (g) of this clause, the Contractor shall make the rerepresentation required by paragraph (b) of this clause by validating or updating all its representations in the Online Representations and Certifications Application and its data in the Central Contractor Registration, as necessary, to ensure they reflect current status. The Contractor shall notify the contracting office by e-mail, or otherwise in writing, that the data have been validated or updated, and provide the date of the validation or update.

(f) If the Contractor represented that it was other than a small business concern prior to award of this contract, the Contractor may, but is not required to, take the actions required by paragraphs (e) or (g) of this clause.

(g) If the Contractor does not have representations and certifications in ORCA, or does not have a representation in ORCA for the NAICS code applicable to this contract, the Contractor is required to complete the following rerepresentation and submit it to the contracting office, along with the contract number and the date on which the rerepresentation was completed:

The Contractor represents that it [] is, [] is not a small business concern under NAICS Code 541512 assigned to contract number NRC-07-08-145.

[Contractor to sign and date and insert authorized signer's name and title].

Section I

I.10 52.232-19 AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS FOR THE NEXT FISCAL YEAR (APR 1984)

Funds are not presently available for performance under this contract beyond February 21, 2009. The Government's obligation for performance of this contract beyond that date is contingent upon the availability of appropriated funds from which payment for contract purposes can be made. No legal liability on the part of the Government for any payment may arise for performance under this contract beyond February 21, 2009, until funds are made available to the Contracting Officer for performance and until the Contractor receives notice of availability, to be confirmed in writing by the Contracting Officer.

I.11 52.252-2 CLAUSES INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE (FEB 1998)

This contract incorporates one or more clauses by reference, with the same force and effect as if they were given in full text. Upon request, the Contracting Officer will make their full text available. Also, the full text of a clause may be accessed electronically at this/these address(es):

http://www.arnet.gov/far

PART III – LIST OF DOCUMENTS, EXHIBITS, AND OTHER ATTACHMENTS

SECTION J – LIST OF ATTACHMENTS

ATTACHMENT NUMBER	, TITLE	DATE	NO. PAGES
One	Statement of Work	1/08	11
Two	NRC Form 187	2/08	2
Three	Billing Instructions	10/03	2

Statement of Work

Title: General IT Support for NSIR Records Management

Contract No. NRC-07-08-145 Attachment One



U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION (NRC) OFFICE OF NUCLEAR SECURITY AND INCIDENT RESPONSE (NSIR)

STATEMENT OF WORK

General IT Support for NSIR Records Management

1

STATEMENT OF WORK

TITLE: General IT Support for NSIR Records Management

TABLE OF CONTENTS

BACKGROUND4
OBJECTIVES
SYSTEM OVERVIEW
TECHNICAL CONSIDERATIONS
TASK ORDERS6
REQUEST FOR TASK ORDER PROPOSALS6
TASK ORDER PROPOSAL SUBMISSION
TASK ORDER PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS
GOVERNMENT FURNISHED ITEMS
SCOPE OF WORK7
PLACE OF PERFORMANCE7
MEETINGS AND TRAVEL8
REPORTING REQUIREMENTS8
TASK ORDER PROJECT PLAN
MONTHLY TECHNICAL PROGRESS REPORT
TASK ORDER REPORTING8
REPORT FORMAT9
REGULATORY REQUIRMENTS
SAFEGUARD OF INFORMATION9
ROLE OF THE NRC9
NRC PROJECT OFFICER

	ENT OF WORK eneral IT Support for NSIR Records Mana	Contract No. NRC-07- gement Attachme	
PERSO	NNEL AND MANAGEMENT REQU	JIREMENTS	10
DELIVE	RABLE SCHEDULE		10
SECUR	ITY REQUIREMENTS		11
ACRON	YMS	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	11

. . .

*

STATEMENT OF WORK

TITLE: General IT Support for NSIR Records Management

Contract No. NRC-07-08-145 Attachment One

I. BACKGROUND

The Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) uses and manages sensitive unclassified documents that contain Safeguards Information (SGI) used for handling sensitive security concerns related to physical protection of special nuclear material, source material, byproduct material, and nuclear power plant facilities. Although authorized staff throughout the agency and regions utilize SGI, many of the users are in the Office of Nuclear Security and Incident Response (NSIR), which is the sponsor of this procurement. Currently a large percentage of the SGI documents are paper copies which are stored in lock-bar cabinets. In addition, some of the SGI documents are electronic files that are stored on CDs and removable hard disks which are stored in lock-bar cabinets.

Over time, managing paper copies of SGI documents in the secure lock-bar cabinets has become increasingly difficult and has caused delays in locating, accessing, and sharing SGI information with authorized staff. This has been problematic in communicating with Licensees and other federal, local, and State governments in responding to time-critical events which involve SGI concerns.

For several years there has been interest in the NRC to develop and implement a secure intranet capability that allows authorized NRC staff in the Headquarters and the Regional Offices to share safeguards information in a secure and effective manner. There have also been on-going discussions to extend this secure capability to external users authorized for handling SGI at licensee, federal, local, and State government organizations. In September 2005, the NRC started piloting capabilities for building a secured electronic repository for SGI documents. This E-Safe Pilot was brought up as a standalone system within a secured facility and utilized a version of the NRC's unclassified electronic document management system, ADAMS. The E-Safe Pilot was successful in demonstrating the capabilities in an isolated environment and continues with a limited Authority to Operate (ATO) within this confined environment.

In March 2006, as a separate activity, the NRC demonstrated a wireless network solution as a potential capability for providing authorized users desktop access to a secured document server. This pilot was demonstrated as a proof of concept and utilized terminals at the users' desktops with wireless connection to back-end servers, Smart Card technologies for user authentication and KVM switches to allow users to alternatively work on the SGI LAN or the agency wide network.

Since June of 2006, NSIR has continued to work and build upon the work accomplished during the two earlier pilot activities with the goal of obtaining a combined SLES Pilot System for approximately 60 authorized users. The SGI LAN which is categorized as a General Support System (GSS) was implemented as part of the SLES 60 user pilot. The Office of Information Systems (OIS) granted Authority To Operate (ATO) for the SGI LAN in August 2007.

Parallel to the activities described above, the E-Safe implementation project with Documentum as its document and record management software was started in May 2007 and the ATO for the E-Safe as a Major Application is expected to be granted in January 2008. E-Safe will then be connected to the SGI LAN to complete the SLES 60 user pilot project. The SLES 60 user implementation will need to be operationally maintained as NSIR continues with the system development with additional users and its introduction into the NRC Production Operating Environment (POE).

II. OBJECTIVES

The following objectives have been identified for this project.

- a) To obtain services in supporting NSIR electronic and paper Records Management (RM).
- b) To design and develop enhancements to the E-Safe to improve the usability of the application.
- c) To provide help desk support for users of E-Safe
- d) To develop and implement policy and procedures for RM
- e) To train all new and current E-Safe users and administrators on Documentum software.
- f) To acquire expert RM support services and products for the NSIR in a timely and efficient manner.
- g) To widen the scope of RM support that is currently being provided in the NSIR.
- h) To provide a contracting vehicle that is fully capable of supporting any type of RM support activity requested by NSIR (i.e. paper as well as electronic records, maintenance, development, analysis, study).

III. SYSTEM OVERVIEW

The mission of NSIR RM/E-Safe is to better manage SGI documents, reduce the volume of SGI document storage space, and ultimately, enhance NRC's effectiveness and efficiency by storing, retrieving, and sharing SGI information among authorized staff and with other authorized Federal, State and local agencies, and licensee representatives. The objectives are to:

- Implement a secure SGI records repository
- Develop and implement policy and procedures for SGI
- Comply with National Archives and Records Administration (NARA) requirements and agency policies for records management
- Ensure technical alignment with NRC standards and architecture for document and records management and networking solutions
- Enable management (add, store, search, retrieve, and disposition) of SGI documents in a centralized electronic document management system
- Provide records management functionality for the electronic records as the official agency records in lieu of paper
- Enable records to be destroyed or retired to NARA electronically in accordance with approved records disposition schedules
- Protect SGI information and documents from unauthorized disclosure
- Comply with applicable standards and guidelines issued and prescribed by NRC for SGI information management systems
- Improve availability of e-mail and other electronic records needed for litigation, Inspector General investigations, decision-making, audits, litigation, Congressional inquiries and FOIA requests

IV. TECHNICAL CONSIDERATIONS

STATEMENT OF WORK

TITLE: General IT Support for NSIR Records Management

- The NRC maintains a Disaster Recovery Plan, which includes a backup site and cutover during a potential NRC Headquarters disaster.
- The NRC requires an efficient and effective records management system for coordinating and communicating with staff at NRC Headquarters and the four Regional Offices.

V. TASK ORDERS

Task orders will be awarded on an as-needed basis under this contract. The contractor shall provide the necessary staffing and resources to fully meet the requested services as specified in each task order placed under this contract.

A. REQUESTS FOR TASK ORDER PROPOSALS

Requests for task order proposals for specific types of RM support in NSIR will be issued by the Government on an as-needed basis throughout the life of the contract.

B. TASK ORDER PROPOSAL SUBMISSION

The contractor shall respond to each task order request issued by the Government by formally submitting a written technical and cost proposal to the NRC Contracting Officer (CO) within ten (10) working days from the receipt of a task order request, unless otherwise directed by the NRC CO. The technical proposal will include the contractor's approach to accomplish the required task, a schedule for performing the work and for providing any required deliverables.

All submitted proposals for Government task orders that request support on an NRC classified system shall include consideration of security clearances for all of the proposed staff.

C. TASK ORDER PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS

The deliverables provided for a given task order shall conform to the standards contained, or referenced, in the statement of work issued for that specific task order. Each task order request will provide an outline for the performance requirements, deliverables, and acceptable criteria.

The contractor shall comply with NSIR's Change Control Board (CCB) and Configuration Management (CM) plan for the SLES system. The contractor shall also comply with the NRC's Project Management Methodology (PMM) as it relates to each specific task.

The contractor shall work and/or coordinate with other contractors as necessary under the direction of the NRC's project manager to achieve the performance required for each task.

D. GOVERNMENT FURNISHED ITEMS

TITLE: General IT Support for NSIR Records Management

In each task order proposal the contractor shall specifically identify the types, amounts, and scheduled time frames for any required government resources, excluding those listed below.

The Government will provide the items listed below on an as needed basis.

- Conference rooms with telephones
- Applicable regulations, manuals, texts, briefs and other materials associated with the project
- Project familiarization / orientation sessions
- Government furnished equipment (desktop computer and telephone)

VI. SCOPE OF WORK

Task orders placed under this contract may cover any task within the full range of RM support services as outlined in this SOW. The contractor shall perform all tasks under this contract in accordance with the SOW for the particular task order under the technical direction of the NRC Project Officer.

The NRC may issue task orders for work in the following areas of RM support services.

- 1. User and Systems Requirement, Design and Data Services to enhance and modernize existing systems and databases.
- 2. Support of NSIR SGI and classified paper records to include developing and implementing NSIR office procedures and policy
- 3. Documentation and training on SLES system. Both the documentation and training shall be provided at the administrator and user level.
- 4. Work with NRC's independent certified and accredited contractor for compliancy with the Federal Information Security Management Act (FISMA) of 2003.

VII. PLACE OF PERFORMANCE

The contractor shall work at NRC during normal business hours, Monday – Friday between the hours of 8:00 AM and 5:00 PM. All contractor overtime must be authorized by the NRC project officer beforehand.

Preparation of deliverables may be performed offsite at the contractor's own facility as long as security requirements are not violated. All system development, acceptance, and deployment activities shall be performed at the NRC Headquarters in Rockville, MD.

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Headquarters 11545 or 11555 Rockville Pike Rockville, MD 20852

The NRC will provide enough onsite physical space for three contractor employees. Government furnished equipment will also be provided onsite and it will include a TITLE: General IT Support for NSIR Records Management

desktop computer for the onsite contractor employees to access the NRC LAN.

VIII. MEETINGS AND TRAVEL

The contractor shall attend a kick-off meeting that will be conducted at NRC Headquarters within 7 days of the contract award to introduce staff and to conduct a detailed project review. The NRC will provide a detailed overview of the SOW along with NRC's operational expectations. The contractor shall present its approach for completing the work under this contract.

Progress meetings will be held regularly during the contract period and their frequency will be determined by the NRC Project Officer. Contractor personnel shall attend and participate in all scheduled staff, planning, or task specific meetings as requested. Additionally, if requested by the Government, the contractor shall prepare and present oral briefings on any topic needed for discussion under the contract (i.e. progress of work, technical issues, task status and budget). No local travel shall be reimbursed under this contract.

IX. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

A. TASK ORDER PROJECT PLAN

The contractor shall provide and present the project plan for the first task order at the contract kick-off meeting. Subsequently, as new task orders are awarded under this contract, the contractor shall provide a project plan applicable to that task order within 7 working days of task order award. The contractor shall provide both a hard and electronic copy of each task order project plan to the NRC project officer.

B. MONTHLY TECHNICAL PROGRESS REPORT

The contractor shall provide a monthly Technical Progress Report to the NRC Project Officer and the Contracting Officer within 15 calendar days after the end of the report period. This report shall be submitted in accordance with the requirements of contract clause 2052.211-71 Technical Progress Report (JAN 1993). The contractor shall provide both a hard and electronic copy of the report to the NRC CO and Project Officer. The frequency of this report and the due date may be changed at anytime by the CO or the Project Officer during the contract period. Additional types of status reports may also be required and will be requested by the NRC Project Officer on an as-needed basis at no additional cost to the Government.

This report shall be broken out by task order and the required information per the referenced contract clause shall be provided for each task order in effect at the time the report is issued.

C. TASK ORDER REPORTING

Any additional reporting requirements specific to individual task orders will be defined within the SOW for each request for task order proposal that the

Government issues.

D. REPORT FORMAT

The contractor shall provide all deliverables and products in the following formats unless the use of another format is mutually agreed upon in advance by the contractor and the NRC project officer.

- Monthly Technical Progress Reports shall be delivered in Microsoft (MS) Word format
- Presentations shall be delivered in MS PowerPoint
- Project Plans shall be provided in MS Project

All data, deliverables, and products created under this contract shall be the property of the NRC. Written permission must be obtained from NRC prior to use or publication of these data, deliverables, or products. No designation of NRC shall be applied to any publication of these data, deliverables, or products without the express written permission of the NRC.

X. REGULATORY REQUIRMENTS

All computer system development shall be compliant with the Federal Information Security Management Act of 2003 (FISMA) and be fully certified and accredited (C&A) to NRC's C&A process.

XI. SAFEGUARD OF INFORMATION

In connection with the performance of the work under this contract, the contractor may be furnished, or may develop or acquire, proprietary data (trade secrets) or confidential or privileged technical, business, or financial information, including Commission plans, policies, reports, financial plans, internal data protected by the Privacy Act of 1974 (Pub.L. 93-579) or other information which has not been released to the public or has been determined by the Commission to be otherwise exempt from disclosure to the public. The contractor agrees to hold the information in confidence and not to directly or indirectly duplicate, disseminate, or disclose the information in whole or in part to any other person or organization except as may be necessary to perform the work under this contract. The contractor agrees to return the information to the Government or otherwise dispose of it at the direction of the Contracting Officer. Failure to comply with this requirement shall be grounds for contract termination.

XII. ROLE OF THE NRC

The NRC Project Officer will provide overall program direction and review and approval of all plans and deliverables.

A. NRC PROJECT OFFICER

The Contracting Officer's authorized representative hereinafter referred to as Project Officer for this contract is:

STATEMENT OF WORK

TITLE: General IT Support for NSIR Records Management

Roya Noory
U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission
T-4A45
Washington, DC 20555
(301) 415-6868, FAX: (301) 415-7714
rxn2@nrc.gov

XIII. PERSONNEL AND MANAGEMENT REQUIREMENTS

The contractor shall provide the appropriate number of qualified, competent, and fully trained personnel to perform the activities delineated under this contract and any task order issued. Contractor personnel shall act in a courteous, responsive, knowledgeable, and professional manner at all times.

All Contractor personnel shall possess the following skills:

- Extensive experience in delivering RM solutions to include developing and implementing policy and procedures
- Extensive experience with and knowledge of current Federal Regulations as they relate to RM systems
- Extensive experience with use and development of RM Software (specifically Documentum)
- Extensive experience with and knowledge of NARA requirements
- Extensive experience with and knowledge of IT Networks, Security, and Firewalls
- Extensive consulting experience in program/system analysis, design, development, and deployment techniques for RM systems
- Extensive experience with and knowledge of Project Management software, including Microsoft Project
- Some level of experience with and knowledge of the Federal Information Security Management Act (FISMA) of 2003
- Extensive experience with and knowledge of Quality Assurance best practices
- Extensive experience with and knowledge of Document Control and Configuration Management best practices

The contractor shall provide the appropriate personnel resumes in accordance with the requirements set forth in each task order SOW.

XIV. DELIVERABLE SCHEDULE

The contractor shall be required to comply with the deliverable schedule stated below. For each report and plan deliverable the contractor shall provide one (1) hard copy and one (1) electronic copy, unless otherwise indicated. All deliverables shall be formatted and prepared using Microsoft Word for documentation and reports, Microsoft PowerPoint for briefings, and Microsoft Project for schedules. Any deliverables rejected by the Project Officer shall be revised and resubmitted within 3 working days of notification from the Project Officer that the deliverable was rejected. Deliverables and due dates are summarized below.

Deliverable	Schedule
Kick-off meeting	Within 7 working days of contract award
Meetings (i.e. Management, Technical)	As determined by the Project Manager
Task Order Project Plan	Within 7 working days of task order award
	Monthly within 15 calendar days after the end of the report period

XV. SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

The contractor shall support all of the security documentation and testing requirements for the SLES project as set forth by the Federal Information Security Management Act (FISMA) during the contract. The contractor will coordinate with and support the FISMA contractor responsible for Security Certification and Accreditation of NSIR systems by assisting with the update and preparation of the SLES security deliverables.

FISMA requires agencies to have plans for information security programs to assure adequate information security for networks, facilities, information systems, or groups of information systems, as appropriate.

XVI. ACRONYMS

СО	Contracting Officer
E-Safe	Electronic Safe
FISMA	Federal Information Security Management Act
GSS	General Support System
IDIQ	Indefinite Delivery - Indefinite Quantities
IT	Information Technology
LAN	Local Area Network
NARA	National Archives and Records Administration
NRC	Nuclear Regulatory Commission
NSIR	Office of Nuclear Security and Incident Response
SGI	Safeguards Information
SLES	SGI LAN Electronic Safe
WAN	Wide Area Network

NRC FORM 187	i. İle ki	ICLEAD DECU	I ATOPV COM		RITY						
NRC FORM 187 U.S. NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION (1-2000) NRCMD 12 CONTRACT SECURITY AND/OR					AUTHORITY The policies, procedures, and criteria of the NRC Security Program, NRCMD 12, apply to performance of this contract, subcontract or other activity.						
CLASS	COM	COMPLETE CLASSIFIED (TEMS BY SEPARATE CORRESPONDENCE									
1. CONTRACTOR NAME AND ADDRESS HumanTouch, LLC 2010 Corporate Ridge, Suite 700 McLean, VA 22102		A. CONTRACT NUMBER FOR COMMERCIAL CONTRACTS OR JOB CODE FOR DOE PROJECTS (Prime contract number must be shown for all subcontracts.) B. PROJECTED C. PROJECTED		RCIAL I be shown	2. TYPE OF SUBMISSION						
		START DATE 01/01/200			C. OTHER (Specify)						
3. FOR FOLLOW-ON CONTRACT, ENTER PRECEDING CONTRACT NUMBER AND PROJECTED COMPLETION DATE											
A DOES NOT APPLY	B. CONTRACT NUMBER			DATE							
4. PROJECT TITLE AND OTHER IDENTIFYING IN General IT Support for NS		₂				**************************************					
* *			4 × *		× .						
	an a					···					
. PERFORMANCE WILL REQUIRE A. ACCESS TO CLASSIFIED MATTER OR CLASSIFIED INFORMATION			NATIONAL	SECURITY	RESTRICTED DATA						
YES (If "YES," answer 1-7 be	1°	NOT APPLICABLE	SECRET	CONFIDENTIAL	SECRET	CONFIDENTIAL					
1. ACCESS TO FOREIGN INTE											
2. RECEIPT, STORAGE, OR O CLASSIFIED MATTER. (See	THER SAFEGUARDING OF 5.B.)										
3. GENERATION OF CLASSIFI	ED MATTER.										
4. ACCESS TO CRYPTOGRAP CLASSIFIED COMSEC INFO											
5. ACCESS TO CLASSIFIED M INFORMATION PROCESSEI											
6: CLASSIFIED USE OF AN IN PROCESSING SYSTEM.	ORMATION TECHNOLOGY			· 🗍							
7. OTHER (Specify)											
B. IS FACILITY CLEARANCE REQUIR	ED? YES NO			.9 9 92	• •						
C. UNESCORTED ACCESS IS	REQUIRED TO PROTECTED AND	VITAL AREAS OF	NUCLEAR POW	ER PLANTS.		· · · ·					
D. ACCESS IS REQUIRED TO	UNCLASSIFIED SAFEGUARDS INI	FORMATION.		·		- 					
	SENSITIVE IT SYSTEMS AND DAT					•					
	DINRC HEADQUARTERS BUILDING	3	200		·						
FOR PROCEDURES AND REQUIREMENT	NTS ON PROVIDING TEMPORARY	AND FINAL APPR	OVAL FOR UNES	CORTED ACCES	S, REFER TO NR	CMD 12.					
NRC FORM 187 (1-2000)		ON RECYCLED PAPE			This form was des						

٠ſ

INFORMATION PERTAINING TO THESE REQUIREMENTS OR THIS PROJECT, EVEN THOUGH SUCH INFORMATION IS CONSIDERED UNCLASSIFIED, SHALL NOT BE RELEASED FOR DISSEMINATION EXCEPT AS APPROVED BY: DATE NAME AND TITLE SIGNATURE **Roya Noory, Project Manager** 7. CLASSIFICATION GUIDANCE NATURE OF CLASSIFIED GUIDANCE IDENTIFICATION OF CLASSIFICATION GUIDES N/A 8. CLASSIFIED REVIEW OF CONTRACTOR / SUBCONTRACTOR REPORT(S) AND OTHER DOCUMENTS WILL BE CONDUCTED BY: DIVISION OF FACILITIES AND SECURITY AUTHORIZED CLASSIFIER (Name and Title) 9. REQUIRED DISTRIBUTION OF NRC FORM 187 Check appropriate box(es) SPONSORING NRC OFFICE OR DIVISION (Item 10A) DIVISION OF CONTRACTS AND PROPERTY MANAGEMENT **DIVISION OF FACILITIES AND SECURITY** (Item 10B) CONTRACTOR (Item 1) SECURITY/CLASSIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBCONTRACTS RESULTING FROM THIS CONTRACT WILL BE APPROVED BY THE OFFICIALS NAMED IN ITEMS 10B AND 10C BELOW. **10. APPROVALS** SECURITY/CLASSIFICATION REQUIREMENTS FOR SUBCONTRACTS RESULTING FROM THIS CONTRACT WILL BE APPROVED BY THE OFFICIALS NAMED IN ITEMS 10B AND 10C BELOW. NAME (Print or type) SIGNATURE DATE DATE A. DIRECTOR, OFFICE OR DIVISION SIGNATURE VIRGINIA A. HUTH 01/02 FACILITIES AND SECURITY SIGNATURE DATE DIRECT OR DIVISION OF R Tank D. Lombal --30 DIRECTOR, DIVISION OF CONTRACTS AND PROPERTY MANAGEMENT Ċ. SIGNATURE DATE (Not applicable to DDE agreements REMARKS

Contract No # NRC-07-08-145

Attachment Three

BILLING INSTRUCTIONS FOR FIXED PRICE CONTRACTS (October 2003)

<u>General</u>: The contractor is responsible during performance and through final payment of this contract for the accuracy and completeness of the data within the Central Contractor Registration (CCR) database, and for any liability resulting from the Government's reliance on inaccurate or incomplete CCR data. The contractor shall prepare vouchers or invoices as prescribed herein. FAILURE TO SUBMIT VOUCHERS/INVOICES IN ACCORDANCE WITH THESE INSTRUCTIONS WILL RESULT IN REJECTION OF THE VOUCHER/INVOICES AS IMPROPER.

<u>Form</u>: Claims shall be submitted on the payee's letterhead, voucher/invoices, or on the Government's Standard Form 1034, "Public Voucher for Purchases and Services Other than Personal," and Standard Form 1035, "Public Voucher for Purchases Other than Personal--Continuation Sheet." These forms are available from the U.S. Government Printing Office, 710 North Capitol Street, Washington, DC 20401.

<u>Number of Copies</u>: An original and three copies shall be submitted. Failure to submit all the required copies will result in rejection of the voucher/invoice as improper.

Designated Agency Billing Office: Vouchers/Invoices shall be submitted to the following address:

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Division of Contracts - T-7-I-2 Washington, DC 20555-0001

A copy of any invoice which includes a purchase of property valued at the time of purchase at \$5000 or more, shall additionally be sent to:

NRC Property Management Officer Administrative Services Center Mail Stop -O-2G-112 Washington, DC 20555-0001

HAND-DELIVERY OF VOUCHERS/INVOICES IS DISCOURAGED AND WILL NOT EXPEDITE PROCESSING BY THE NRC. However, should you choose to deliver vouchers/invoices by hand, including delivery by any express mail service or special delivery service which uses a courier or other person to deliver the vouchers/invoices in person to the NRC, such vouchers/invoices must be addressed to the above Designated Agency Billing Office and will only be accepted at the following location:

> U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission One White Flint North - Mail Room 11555 Rockville Pike Rockville, MD 20852

HAND-CARRIED SUBMISSIONS WILL NOT BE ACCEPTED AT OTHER THAN THE ABOVE ADDRESS

Note that the official receipt date for hand-delivered vouchers/invoices will be the date it is received by the official agency billing office in the Division of Contracts.

<u>Agency Payment Office</u>: Payment will continue to be made by the office designated in the contract in Block 12 of the Standard Form 26 or Block 25 of the Standard Form 33, whichever is applicable.

<u>Frequency</u>: The contractor shall submit a voucher or invoice only after the NRC's final acceptance of services rendered or products delivered in performance of the contract unless otherwise specified in the contract.

<u>Preparation and Itemization of the Voucher/Invoice</u>: The voucher/invoice shall be prepared in ink or by typewriter (without strike-overs). Corrections or erasures must be initialed. To be considered a proper voucher/invoice, all of the following elements must be included:

- 1. Contractor's Data Universal Number (DUNS) or DUNS+4 number that identifies the contractor's name and address. The DUNS+4 number is the DUNS number plus a 4-character suffix that may be assigned at the discretion of the contractor to identify alternative Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT) accounts for the same parent concern.
- 2. Contract number.
- 3. Sequential voucher/invoice number.
- 4. Date of voucher/invoice.
- 5. Payee's name and address. Show the name of the Payee as it appears in the contract and its correct address. If the Payee assigns the proceeds of this contract as provided for in the assignment of claims terms of this contract, the Payee shall require as a condition of any such assignment, that the assignee shall register separately in the Central Contractor Registration (CCR) database at http://www.ccr.gov and shall be paid by EFT in accordance with the terms of this contract. See Federal Acquisition Regulation 52.232-33(g) Payment by Electronic Funds Transfer Central Contractor Registration (October 2003).
- 6. Description of articles or services, quantity, unit price, and total amount.
- 7. For contractor acquired property list each item purchased costing \$50,000 or more and having a life expectancy of more than 1 year and provide: (1) an item description, (2) manufacturer, (3) model number, (4) serial number, (5) acquisition cost, (6) date of purchase, and (7) a copy of the purchasing document.
- 8. Weight and zone of shipment, if shipped by parcel post.
- 9. Charges for freight or express shipments. Attach prepaid bill if shipped by freight or express.
- 10. Instructions to consignee to notify the Contracting Officer of receipt of shipment.
- 11. For Indefinite Delivery contracts or contracts under which progress payments are authorized, the final voucher/invoice shall be marked "FINAL VOUCHER" OR "FINAL INVOICE."

<u>Currency</u>: Billings may be expressed in the currency normally used by the contractor in maintaining his accounting records and payments will be made in that currency. However, the U.S. dollar equivalent for all vouchers/invoices paid under the contract may not exceed the total U.S. dollars authorized in the contract.

Supersession: These instructions supersede any previous billing instructions.